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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT
To The Stockholder of
Rialto Holdings, LLC
Miami, Florida
We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Rialto Holdings, LLC and
Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of May 31, 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations
for the three-month and six-month periods ended May 31, 2014 and 2013, the consolidated statement of
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month periods ended May 31, 2014 and
2013 (the “interim financial information”).
Management’s Responsibility for the Interim Financial Information
The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the interim
financial information in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this responsibility includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
sufficient to provide a reasonable basis for the preparation and fair presentation of interim financial
information in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to conduct our reviews in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America applicable to reviews of interim financial information. A review of interim
financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial information. Accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.
Conclusion
Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the interim
financial information referred to above for it to be in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
Report on Consolidated Balance Sheet as of November 30, 2013
We have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of November 30, 2013, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, equity, and, and cash flows for the year then ended (not
presented herein); and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements in our report dated February 12, 2014. In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet of the Company as of November 30, 2013, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

July 15, 2014

PART I. Financial Information
Item 1. Financial Statements

RIALTO HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF MAY 31, 2014 AND NOVEMBER 30, 2013
(In thousands) (Unaudited)
May 31,
2014

November 30,
2013

ASSETS
Cash
Restricted cash
Receivables, net
Loans held-for-sale
Loans receivable, net
Real estate owned - held-for-sale
Real estate owned - held-and-used, net
Investments in unconsolidated entities
Investments held-to-maturity
Deferred income tax asset, net
Other assets - net
Total assets

$

244,675
34,890
125,746
45,065
203,190
192,829
379,069
157,693
16,658
7,392
66,209

$

201,496
2,593
111,833
44,228
278,392
197,851
428,989
154,573
16,070
43,288

$

1,473,416

$

1,479,313

$

3,783
77,084
9,623
577,916

$

3,729
43,580
7,815
12,447
441,883

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Deferred income tax liability, net
Due to Parent
Notes payable and other debts payable
Total liabilities

668,406

509,454

PARENT'S EQUITY

449,219

539,446

NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

355,791

430,413

805,010

969,859

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

$

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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1,473,416

$

1,479,313

RIALTO HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE THREE AND SIX MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2014 AND 2013
(In thousands) (Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

REVENUES:
Interest income
REO revenue:
Hospital revenues, net
Rental income
Gains from securitizations and other loan origination revenues
Management fees

Six Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

$ 24,008

$ 19,129

$ 42,471

$ 38,437

5,480
4,188
22,479
7,906

5,439
6,555

9,794
10,052
35,307
23,570

9,981
12,869

64,061

31,123

121,194

61,287

25,451

14,289

49,805

26,862

4,208
2,243
33,866
8,961
5,043
5,073
685
525

(1,207)
3,521
715
8,155
1,331
294

10,883
6,975
40,582
15,371
11,303
7,807
1,266
1,046

2,008
10,610
2,031
17,642
2,473
458

86,055

27,098

145,038

62,084

17,939

4,505

23,293

10,678

378

-

378

-

(3,677)

8,530

(173)

9,881

LESS: NET (LOSS) EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

(17,056)

5,690

(16,121)

5,361

NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO RIALTO BEFORE
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

13,379

2,840

15,948

4,520

5,187

1,479

6,175

2,147

Total revenues
EXPENSES:
General and administrative expense
REO expense, net:
Hospital expense, net
Other REO expense (income), net
Provision for loan losses
Interest expense
Servicing expense
Securitization and loan origination expenses
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Depreciation expense
Total expenses
EQUITY IN EARNINGS FROM UNCONSOLIDATED
ENTITIES
GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES
NET EARNINGS (INCLUDING NET (LOSS) EARNINGS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS)

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO RIALTO

$

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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8,192

$

1,361

$

9,773

$

2,373

RIALTO HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2014 AND 2013
(In thousands) (Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

PARENT'S EQUITY
Beginning balance

$

Net earnings attributable to Rialto

539,446

$

2,373

9,773

Distributions of capital to Parent

53,163

(100,000)

-

Ending balance

$

449,219

$

55,536

NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS
Beginning balance

$

430,413

$

445,286

Net (loss) earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests

(16,121)

Final bargain purchase acquisition adjustment
Distributions of capital to noncontrolling interests
Ending balance
TOTAL EQUITY
See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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5,361

1,117

-

(59,618)

-

$

355,791

$

450,647

$

805,010

$

506,183

RIALTO HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2014 AND 2013
(In thousands) (Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net earnings attributable to Rialto
Noncontrolling interest (loss) earnings
Adjustment to reconcile net earnings attributable to Rialto
to net cash used in operating activities:
Amortization of debt issuance costs and premium
Depreciation expense
Net losses on loan foreclosure
Gains on sale of real estate owned
Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities
Impairment on real estate owned
Deferred income tax benefit
Provision for loan losses
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated entities
Accretion of discount on investments held-to-maturity
Gain on sale of CMBS bond
Originations of loans held-for-sale
Proceeds from sale of loans held-for-sale
Principal payments on loans held-for-sale
Unrealized gains on loans held-for-sale
Gain on retirement of debt
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Restricted cash
Loans receivable, net
Other assets
Accounts payable
Due to Parent
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

$

9,773
(16,121)

$

2,373
5,361

1,164
3,775
7,108
(23,743)
(23,293)
3,543
(12,353)
40,582
(588)
(378)
(692,155)
683,913
493
(6,831)
(2,627)

2,473
2,536
1,723
(27,206)
(10,678)
4,587
(8,033)
10,610
197
(510)
-

(15,323)
(10,558)
(15,533)
54
(2,824)
13,675

(1,391)
(1,510)
534
(9,844)

(58,247)

(28,778)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of operating equipment
Receipts of principal payments on loans receivable
Proceeds from sales of real estate owned
Improvements to real estate owned
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated entities
Investments in unconsolidated entities
Proceeds from sale of CMBS bond
Acquisition of CMBS bond
Acquisition of loans receivable
Decrease in defeasance cash to retire notes payable

(3,816)
8,357
112,409
(6,194)
32,672
(20,792)
9,171
(8,705)
-

(1,703)
34,288
104,482
(5,396)
37,106
(33,636)
(5,450)
185,910

Net cash provided by investing activities

123,102

315,601

Net cash used in operating activities

(Continued)
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RIALTO HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2014 AND 2013
(In thousands) (Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from 7.00% Senior Notes
Proceeds from securitization borrowings
Repayment of notes payable and other debts payable
Net repayments under warehouse repurchase facilities
Debt issuance costs
Distributions of capital to Parent
Distributions of capital to noncontrolling interest
Increase in due to Parent

104,525
73,830
(5,870)
(31,593)
(2,950)
(100,000)
(59,618)
-

(314,597)
14,095

Net cash used in financing activites

(21,676)

(300,502)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

43,179

(13,679)

201,496

105,310

CASH — Beginning of period
CASH — End of period

$ 244,675

$

91,631

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest on notes payable and other debts payable

$

3,667

$

2,031

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON-CASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Real estate owned acquired through loan foreclosure

$

34,685

$

27,520

Non-cash acquisition of Service Provider (see Note 7)

$

8,317

$

-

Reductions in loans receivable from deficiency settlements

$

2,585

$

264

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

(Concluded)
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RIALTO HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF MAY 31, 2014 AND NOVEMBER 30, 2013 AND FOR THE
THREE AND SIX MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2014 AND 2013 (UNAUDITED)

1.

ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
Rialto Holdings, LLC is a holding company that owns 100% of the legal entities Rialto Investments, LLC
and Rialto Capital Management, LLC and conducts its activities through those entities and their subsidiaries
(collectively, “Rialto” or the “Company”). Rialto is a leading commercial real estate investment, investment
management, and finance company focused on raising, investing and managing third party capital, and, in
addition, originating commercial mortgage loans which the Company sells to securitization vehicles. Rialto
has a vertically-integrated operating platform consisting of approximately 400 professionals located in ten
offices across the U.S. Rialto was founded in 2007 and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lennar Corporation
(“Lennar” or the “Parent”), one of the largest homebuilders in the U.S.
Asset and Investment Management
The Company’s real estate Asset and Investment Management business is a sponsor of and an investor in
private equity vehicles that invest in and manage real estate related assets. This has included the Rialto Real
Estate Fund, LP (“Fund I”) that was initially formed in 2010 in which investors committed and contributed a
total of $700 million of equity (including $75 million by the Company), the Rialto Real Estate Fund II, LP
(“Fund II”) that was formed in 2013 with investor commitments of $1.3 billion (including $100 million by
the Company), the Rialto Mezzanine Partners Fund, LP (the “Mezzanine Fund”) that was formed in 2013
with a target of raising $300 million in capital (including $27.3 million committed by the Company) to
invest in performing mezzanine commercial loans and the Rialto CMBS Fund, LP (the “CMBS Fund”) with
investor commitments of $20 million (including $12.2 million by the Company), that was created in 2014 to
acquire, own and/or monetize securities whose value and income payments are derived from and collaterized
by specific pools of underlying assets, referred to as commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”). In
2013, the Company also began managing a $200 million separate account for an insurance company. Rialto
earns fees for its role as a manager of these vehicles and for providing asset management and other services
to these vehicles and other third parties.
RMF
The Company’s Rialto Mortgage Finance (“RMF”) operations began in 2013 with the Company originating
and securitizing five, seven and ten year fixed rate commercial first mortgage loans, generally with principal
amounts between $2 million and $75 million, which are secured by income producing properties.
Direct Investments in Real Estate Related Assets
In 2010, the Company acquired indirectly 40% managing member equity interests in two limited liability
companies (“LLCs”), in partnership with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). The FDIC
retained 60% equity interests in the LLCs. The LLCs hold performing and non-performing loans formerly
owned by 22 failed financial institutions and when the Company acquired its interests in the LLCs, the two
portfolios consisted of approximately 5,500 distressed residential and commercial real estate loans (“FDIC
Portfolios”). The FDIC retained 60% equity interests in the LLCs and provided $626.9 million of financing
with 0% interest, which was non-recourse to the Company and the LLCs and has been paid off (see Note
10).
The LLCs meet the accounting definition of a variable interest entity (“VIE”) and since the Company was
-7-

determined to be the primary beneficiary, the Company consolidated the LLCs. At May 31, 2014, these
consolidated LLCs had total combined assets and liabilities of $607.5 million and $24.5 million,
respectively. At November 30, 2013, these consolidated LLCs had total combined assets and liabilities of
$727.1 million and $20.2 million, respectively.
Also in 2010, the Company acquired approximately 400 distressed residential and commercial real estate
loans (“Bank Portfolios”) and over 300 real estate owned (“REO”) properties from three financial
institutions. The Company paid $310 million for the Bank portfolios and real estate related assets of which
$124 million was financed through a 5-year senior unsecured note provided by one of the selling institutions.
In addition, in 2010, the Company purchased approximately $43 million face amount of non-investment
grade CMBS for $19.4 million, representing a 55% discount from par value.
We also manage certain operating assets that are acquired through foreclosure of loans, which as of May 31,
2014, include a hospital operation (see Note 7).
2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Significant accounting principles and practices used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:
Basis of Presentation - The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The accompanying
consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. All
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.
Reclassification – Certain prior year amounts in the consolidated financial statements have been reclassified
to conform to 2014 presentation.
Unaudited/Interim Periods - These consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes as of May 31,
2014 and November 30, 2013, and for the three and six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013, are unaudited
and should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes included in the Annual Report for the year ended November 30, 2013.
Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the
Company’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include expected cash
flows on distressed loans, allowances for loan losses, and the valuation of loans held-for-sale, real estate
acquired in connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans, and fair value derivative instruments.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Restricted Cash - Restricted cash includes funds held in a separate bank account that are designated for the
repayment of accrued interest on notes payable in the event that cash on hand is not sufficient to service the
debt. The Company has also established a restricted cash account related to the RMF business line. These
funds are restricted as they are upfront deposits and application fees the Company receives before
originating the loans. Once the loan has been originated the Company recognizes the income and the cash is
no longer restricted. Also, during January 2014, the Company acquired a loan service provider (see Note 7).
Restricted cash is held in escrow by the loan service provider on behalf of customers and lenders and is
disbursed in accordance with agreements between the transacting parties.
-8-

Defeasance Cash - The Company had established defeasance accounts for the benefit of the FDIC. These
funds were restricted and were distributed pursuant to a priority of payments (see Note 3). As a result of the
repayment of the FDIC Notes payable, the defeasance accounts were closed during 2013.
Loans Receivable - Revenue Recognition and Impairment - All of the acquired loans for which (1) there was
evidence of credit quality deterioration since origination and (2) it was deemed probable that the Company
would be unable to collect all contractually required principal and interest payments were accounted for
under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with
Deteriorated Credit Quality, (“ASC 310-30”). For loans accounted for under ASC 310-30, management
determined upon acquisition the loan’s value based on due diligence on each of the loans, the underlying
properties, and the borrowers. The Company determined fair value by discounting the cash flows expected
to be collected, adjusted for factors that a market participant would consider when determining fair value.
Factors considered in the valuation were projected cash flows for the loans, type of loan and related
collateral and current discount rates.
Under ASC 310-30, loans were pooled together according to common risk characteristics. A pool is then
accounted for as a single asset with a single component interest rate and an aggregate expectation of cash
flows. The excess of the cash flows expected to be collected from the loans receivable at acquisition over the
initial investment for those loans receivable is referred to as the accretable yield and is recognized as interest
income over the expected life of the pools primarily using the effective yield method. The difference
between contractually required payments at acquisition and the cash flows expected to be collected is
referred to as the nonaccretable difference. This difference is neither accreted into income nor recorded on
the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the expected cash flows of loans receivable from the
date of acquisition will either impact the accretable yield or result in a charge to the provision for loan losses
in the period in which the changes become probable. Prepayments are treated as a reduction of cash flows
expected to be collected and a reduction of contractually required payments such that the nonaccretable
difference is not affected. Subsequent significant decreases to the expected cash flows will generally result
in a charge to the provision for loan losses, resulting in an increase to the allowance for loan losses, and a
reclassification from accretable yield to nonaccretable difference. Subsequent probable and significant
increases in cash flows will result in a recovery of any previously recorded allowance for loan losses, to the
extent applicable, and a reclassification from nonaccretable difference to accretable yield. Amounts related
to the ASC 310-30 loans are estimates and may change as the Company obtains additional information
related to the respective loans and the inherent uncertainty associated with estimating the amount and timing
of the expected cash flows associated with distressed residential and commercial real estate loans. The
timing and amount of expected cash flows and related accretable yield can also be impacted by disposal of
loans, loan payoffs or expected foreclosures, which result in removal of the loans from the pools. Since the
cash flows are based on projections, they are subjective and can change due to unexpected changes in
economic conditions and loan performance.
Nonaccrual Loans - Revenue Recognition and Impairment - For loans in which forecasted principal and
interest could not be reasonably estimated at the loan acquisition date, management classified these loans as
nonaccrual and accounts for these assets in accordance with ASC 310-10, Receivables, (“ASC 310-10”).
When a loan is classified as nonaccrual, any subsequent cash receipt is accounted for using the cost recovery
method. In accordance with ASC 310-10, a loan is considered impaired when based on current information
and events it is probable that all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will
not be collected. A provision for loan losses is recognized when the recorded investment in the loan is in
excess of its fair value. The fair value of the loan is determined by using either the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loans obtainable market price, or the fair
value of the collateral less estimated costs to sell.
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Loans Held-for-sale and Derivative Instruments – The originated commercial mortgage loans are classified
as Loans held-for-sale on the consolidated balance sheet and are recorded at fair value. The Company
elected the fair value option for its loans held-for-sale in accordance with ASC 825, Financial Instruments,
(“ASC 825”), which permits entities to measure various financial instruments and certain other items at fair
value on a contract-by-contract basis. Management believes that carrying loans held-for-sale at fair value
improves financial reporting by mitigating volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring the fair value
of the loans and the derivative instruments used to economically hedge them without having to apply
complex hedge accounting provisions. Changes in fair values of the loans and the derivative instruments are
reflected in gains from securitizations and other in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Interest income on these loans is calculated based on the interest rate of the loan and is recorded within
revenue as Interest income in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Substantially all of
the mortgage loans originated are sold within a short period of time into a securitization on a servicing
released, non-recourse basis; although, the Company remains liable for certain limited industry-standard
representations and warranties related to loan sales. The Company recognizes gains on the sale of loans into
securitization trusts when control of the loans has been relinquished. As of May 31, 2014 and November 30,
2013, the Company had $125.7 million and $109.3 million, respectively, in originated loans that were
transferred to receivables, net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as they had been sold into a
securitization trust but not yet closed as of their respective balance sheet dates.
In the normal course of business, the Company uses derivative financial instruments on these loans during
the period from when the Company has originated the loan until the time in which the loan is sold. These
derivatives, which are carried at fair value, are used for risk management purposes to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in mortgage-related interest rates as well as lessen its credit risk. The Company hedges its
interest rate exposure through entering into interest rate swaps and swap futures and as of May 31, 2014, had
fair values of approximately $0.4 million in a liability position. As of November 30, 2013, the Company had
interest rate swap futures with fair values of approximately $31,000 in a liability position. Credit exposure is
managed at a portfolio level through entering into credit default swaps consisting of both single “A”, “AAA”
and “BBB” rated CMBX swaps as well as CDX swaps, which as of May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013,
had a fair value of $1.2 million and $0.8 million, respectively, in contracts in an asset position and $0.6
million and $0.3 million, respectively, in a liability position. The Company does not enter into or hold
derivatives for trading or speculative purposes (see Note 12). Derivative instruments in gain positions are
recorded in Other assets – net in the consolidated balance sheets (see Note 9), while derivative instruments
in loss positions are recorded within Accrued expenses and other liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheets.
Deficiency Interest Income - Deficiency recoveries from foreclosed loans is a component of the Company’s
operations. Upon receipt of consideration from a deficiency settlement, the Company determines the fair
value of the net assets received and records interest income. During the three months ended May 31, 2014
and 2013, the Company recorded $10.6 million and $5.1 million, respectively, in deficiency interest income.
During the six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recorded $15.1 million and $8.9
million, respectively, in deficiency interest income.
Variable Interest Entities - In 2010, the Company acquired indirectly 40% managing member equity
interests in two limited liability companies (“LLCs”), in partnership with the FDIC. The Company
determined that each of the LLCs met the definition of a VIE and that the Company was the primary
beneficiary. In accordance with ASC 810-10-65-2, Consolidations, (“ASC 810-10-65-2”), the Company
identified the activities that most significantly impact the LLCs’ economic performance and determined that
it has the power to direct those activities. The economic performance of the LLCs is most significantly
impacted by the performance of the LLCs’ portfolios of assets, which consisted primarily of distressed
residential and commercial mortgage loans. Thus, the activities that most significantly impact the LLCs’
- 10 -

economic performance are the servicing and disposition of mortgage loans and real estate obtained through
foreclosure of loans, restructuring of loans, or other planned activities associated with the monetizing of
loans.
The FDIC does not have the unilateral power to terminate the Company’s role in managing the LLCs and
servicing the loan portfolio. While the FDIC has the right to prevent certain types of transactions (i.e., bulk
sales, selling assets with recourse back to the selling entity, selling assets with representations and warranties
and financing the sales of assets without the FDIC’s approval), the FDIC does not have full voting or
blocking rights over the LLCs’ activities, making their voting rights protective in nature, not substantive
participating voting rights. Other than as described in the preceding sentence, which are not the primary
activities of the LLCs, the Company can cause the LLCs to enter into both the disposition and restructuring
of loans without any involvement of the FDIC. Additionally, the FDIC has no voting rights with regard to
the operation/management of the operating properties that are acquired upon foreclosure of loans (e.g. REO)
and no voting rights over the business plans of the LLCs. The FDIC can make suggestions regarding the
business plans, but the Company can decide not to follow the FDIC’s suggestions and not to incorporate
them in the business plans. Since the FDIC’s voting rights are protective in nature and not substantive
participating voting rights, the Company has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact
the LLCs’ economic performance.
In accordance with ASC 810-10-65-2, the Company determined that it had an obligation to absorb losses of
the LLCs that could potentially be significant to the LLCs or the right to receive benefits from the LLCs that
could potentially be significant to the LLCs based on the following factors:
• Rialto/Lennar owns 40% of the equity of the LLCs and has the power to direct the activities of the
LLCs that most significantly impact their economic performance through loan resolutions and the sale
of REO.
• Rialto/Lennar has a management/servicer contract under which the Company earns a 0.5% servicing
fee.
• Rialto/Lennar has guaranteed, as the servicer, its obligations under the servicing agreement up to $10
million.
The Company is aware that the FDIC, as the owner of 60% of the equity of each of the LLCs, may also have
an obligation to absorb losses of the LLCs that could potentially be significant to the LLCs. However, in
accordance with ASC 810-10-25-38A, only one enterprise, if any, is expected to be identified as the primary
beneficiary of a VIE.
Since both criteria for consolidation in ASC 810-10-65-2 are met, the Company consolidated the LLCs.
During 2011, the Company acquired an equity interest in several joint ventures as part of a deficiency
settlement. Management determined that each of the joint ventures met the definition of a VIE. In
accordance with ASC 810-10-65-2, management identified the activities that most significantly impact the
joint ventures’ economic performance and determined whether it has the power to direct those activities in
the joint ventures. The activities that most significantly impact the joint ventures’ economic performance are
the servicing and maintenance of an entity’s underlying asset, which consists of commercial real estate.
Although the Company has no obligation to provide financial support to any of its VIE’s and has only its
equity investment at risk, the Company has determined it has the right to direct the activities and to
potentially receive significant benefits from one of the joint venture entities due to its majority ownership
and equity position in the entity. Since both criteria for consolidation in ASC 810-10-65-2 are met, the
Company has consolidated the joint venture in its consolidated financial statements.
- 11 -

Real Estate Owned - REO represents real estate which the Company has taken control or has effective
control of in partial or full satisfaction of loans receivable. At the time of acquisition through foreclosure of
a loan, REO is recorded at fair value less estimated costs to sell if classified as held for sale and at fair value
if classified as held and used, which becomes the property’s new basis. The fair values of these assets are
determined in part by placing reliance on third-party appraisals of the properties and/or internally prepared
analysis of recent offers or prices on comparable properties in the proximate vicinity. The third-party
appraisals and internally developed analysis are significantly impacted by local market economy, market
supply and demand, competitive conditions, and prices on comparable properties, adjusted for date of sale,
location, property size, and other factors. Each REO is unique and is analyzed in the context of the particular
market where the property is located. In order to establish the significant assumptions for a particular REO,
the Company analyzes historical and current trends in the market and economy impacting the REO. Using
available trend information, the Company then calculates its best estimate of fair value, which can include
projected cash flows discounted at a rate that management believes a market participant would determine to
be commensurate with the inherent risks associated with the assets and related estimated cash flow streams.
Changes in economic factors, consumer demand, and market conditions, among other things, could
materially impact estimates used in the third-party appraisals and/or internally prepared analysis of recent
offers or prices on comparable properties. Thus, estimates can differ significantly from the amounts
ultimately realized by the Company from disposition of these assets. The amount by which the recorded
investment in the loan is less than the REO’s value (net of estimated cost to sell if held for sale), is recorded
as a gain on foreclosure within REO expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
The amount by which the recorded investment in the loan is greater than the REO’s fair value (net of
estimated cost to sell if held for sale), is initially recorded as impairment within REO expense in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
Subsequent to obtaining REO via foreclosure or directly from a financial institution, management
periodically performs valuations using the methodologies described above such that the real estate is carried
at the lower of its carrying value or current fair value, less estimated costs to sell if classified as held for sale.
Held and used assets are tested for recoverability whenever changes in circumstances indicate that its
carrying value may not be recoverable, and impairment losses are recorded for any amount by which the
carrying value exceeds its fair value. Any subsequent impairment losses, operating expenses or income, and
gains and losses on disposition of such properties are also recognized in income. REO assets classified as
held and used are depreciated using a useful life of 40 years for commercial properties and 27 1/2 years for
residential properties. REO assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated. Occasionally an asset will
require certain improvements to yield a higher return. In accordance with ASC 970-340-25, Real Estate,
construction costs incurred prior to acquisition or during development of the asset are capitalized.
Operating Equipment – Operating equipment is recorded at cost and is included in other assets – net in the
consolidated balance sheets. The assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straightline method. At the time operating properties and equipment are disposed of, the asset and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited or
charged to earnings. The estimated useful life for equipment is two to ten years and for leasehold
improvements is five years or the life of the lease, whichever is shorter.
Goodwill – Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets
acquired. Evaluating goodwill for impairment involves the determination of the fair value of our reporting
unit in which we have recorded goodwill. A reporting unit is a component of a business line for which
discrete financial information is available. Inherent in the determination of fair value of our reporting unit is
certain estimates and judgments, including the interpretation of current economic indicators and market
valuations as well as our strategic plans with regard to our operations. To the extent additional information
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arises or our strategies change, it is possible that our conclusion regarding goodwill impairment could
change, which could have a material effect on our financial position and results of operations.
The Company recorded goodwill in connection with an acquisition during the first quarter of 2014 (see Note
7) and is recorded in Other assets – net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Because the
acquisition happened during the first quarter of 2014, there has been no annual review of goodwill as of May
31, 2014. The first annual review of goodwill will take place in the fourth quarter of 2014, unless indicators
for impairment exist in earlier periods.
Management Fees Revenue - The Company provides services to a variety of legal entities and investment
vehicles such as funds, joint ventures, co-investment partnerships, and other private equity structures to
manage their respective investments. As a result, the Company earns and receives investment management
fees, underwriting fees and due diligence fees. These fees are recorded over the period in which the services
are performed, fees are determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. The Company receives
investment management fees from investment vehicles based on 1) a percentage of committed or called
capital during the commitment period and called capital after the commitment period ends, 2) a percentage
of invested capital less the portion of such invested capital utilized to acquire investments that have been
sold (in whole or in part) or liquidated. Fees earned for underwriting and due diligence services are based on
actual costs incurred.
In certain situations, the Company may earn additional fees when the return on assets managed exceeds
contractual thresholds (“Carried Interest”). Such revenue is only booked when substantially all of the
contract terms are met, the contract is at or near completion and the amounts are known and collectability is
reasonably assured. Since such revenue is recognized at the end of the life of the investment vehicle, after
substantially all of the assets have been sold and investment gains and losses realized, the possibility of claw
back provisions is limited.
Hospital Revenues, net - The Company recognizes revenues from the Hospital operation acquired in 2013 in
the period in which services are provided. Amounts the Company receives for treatment of patients covered
by governmental programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid, and other third-party payers such as HMOs,
PPOs and other private insurers, are generally less than our established billing rates. Revenues are recorded
at estimated net amounts due from patients, third-party payers and others for healthcare services provided.
Accordingly, revenues are reduced to net realizable value through an allowance for contractual discounts.
For certain payers, such as Medicare, Medicaid, as well as some managed care payers with which the
Company has contractual arrangements, the contractual allowances are calculated by computerized logging
systems based on defined payment terms. For other payers, the contractual allowances are determined based
on historical data by insurance plan. All contractual adjustments, regardless of type of payer or method of
calculation, are reviewed and compared to actual experience.
Debt Issuance Costs - Certain issuance costs were incurred for the financing of the FDIC notes payable
(“Notes”). These costs were approximately 3% of the principal balance of the Notes and any unamortized
balance was written-off during 2013 as a result of the repayment of the Notes (see Note 10). Additionally,
certain issuance costs were incurred for the financing of the 7.00% Senior Notes. These costs were
approximately 2% of the principal balance of the 7.00% Senior Notes. Also, issuance costs of $1.8 million
were incurred as a result of the sale of notes through a securitized structured note offering (see Note 10). The
Company also secured two warehouse repurchase facility (“Facilities”) agreements and incurred $2.5
million of fees associated with the Facilities. Such costs associated with the Notes and the Facilities were
deferred and are amortized to interest expense over the expected term of the underlying debt using the
straight-line method, which approximates the effective-interest method. These costs are reflected as Other
assets – net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
- 13 -

Income Tax - The Company records income taxes under the asset and liability method, whereby deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized based on the future tax consequences attributable to temporary
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and attributable to operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the years in which the temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or paid. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period when the changes are enacted. Interest related to
unrecognized tax benefits is recognized as a component of provision for income taxes in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.
A reduction of the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance is required if, based on
the available evidence, it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized. Accordingly, the need
to establish valuation allowances for deferred tax assets is assessed each reporting period by the Company
based on the more-likely-than-not realization threshold criterion. In the assessment for a valuation
allowance, appropriate consideration is given to all positive and negative evidence related to the realization
of the deferred tax assets. This assessment considers, among other matters, the nature, frequency and
severity of current and cumulative losses, forecasts of future profitability, the duration of statutory
carryforward periods, the Company’s experience with loss carryforwards not expiring unused and tax
planning alternatives.
Concentration of Risk - The Company’s success depends to a certain extent on the general economic
conditions of the geographic markets of the Company’s acquired loans and foreclosed assets. At May 31,
2014 and November 30, 2013, assets held by the Company were primarily concentrated in the states of
Georgia, Florida, Arizona, North Carolina, Nevada, and South Carolina. Adverse changes in the economic
conditions of these geographical areas may have a significant impact on the Company’s commercial and
residential real estate loans, the ability of borrowers to repay these loans, and the value of the collateral
securing these loans. The aforementioned may have a negative effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition, and results of operations. A significant portion of the Company’s management fee revenue is
derived from investment funds that the Company sponsors and manages. For both the three and six months
ended May 31, 2014 and 2013, 83% and 93%, respectively, of the Company’s management fee revenue was
earned from investment funds that the Company sponsored and managed.
3.

DEFEASANCE CASH TO RETIRE NOTES PAYABLE
The Company had established defeasance accounts for the benefit of the FDIC. Funds were deposited into
the defeasance accounts, pursuant to a priority of payments (which first required loan proceeds to be used for
various fees, expenses, and working capital prior to any excess being deposited in the defeasance accounts),
until the amount of the funds held in the defeasance accounts was equal to the sum of the outstanding
principal balances of the Notes. No funds from any other source could be commingled in the defeasance
accounts. The Company could not prepay all or any portion of the Notes without the prior written consent of
the FDIC. As a result of the repayment of the Notes during the year ended November 30, 2013, the
defeasance accounts were closed as of November 30, 2013. During the six months ended May 31, 2013, the
LLCs retired $314.0 million of principal amount of the notes payable under the agreement with the FDIC
through the defeasance account.
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4.

LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET, ACCRETABLE YIELD AND LOANS HELD-FOR-SALE
Loans Receivable, Net – The following table displays the loan portfolio by aggregate-level collateral-type
classifications at May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013 (in thousands):
May 31,
2014

November 30,
2013

Land
Single family homes
Commercial properties
Other

$

105,202
49,808
32,501
15,679

$

166,950
59,647
38,060
13,735

Loans receivable, net

$

203,190

$

278,392

With regard to loans accounted for under ASC 310-30, the Company estimated the cash flows, at
acquisition, it expected to collect on the FDIC Portfolios and Bank Portfolios. In accordance with ASC 31030, the difference between the contractually required payments and the cash flows expected to be collected
at acquisition is referred to as the nonaccretable difference. This difference is neither accreted into income
nor recorded on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. The excess of cash flows expected to be
collected over the cost of the loans acquired is referred to as the accretable yield and is recognized in interest
income over the remaining life of the loans using the effective yield method.
The Company periodically evaluates its estimate of cash flows expected to be collected on its FDIC
Portfolios and Bank Portfolios. These evaluations require the continued use of key assumptions and
estimates, similar to those used in the initial estimate of fair value of the loans to allocate purchase price.
Subsequent changes in the estimated cash flows expected to be collected may result in changes in the
accretable yield and nonaccretable difference or reclassifications from nonaccretable difference to accretable
yield. Increases in the cash flows expected to be collected will generally result in an increase in interest
income over the remaining life of the loan or pool of loans. Decreases in expected cash flows due to further
credit deterioration will generally result in an impairment charge recognized as a provision for loan losses,
resulting in an increase to the allowance for loan losses.
The outstanding contractual payments and cash flows expected to be collected on the date of acquisition
were $4.2 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively.
As of May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013 the outstanding balance and carrying value of loans accounted
for under ASC 310-30 was as follows (in thousands):
May 31,
2014

Outstanding principal balance
Carrying value

$ 496,641
$ 197,992
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November 30,
2013

$ 586,901
$ 270,075

Accretable Yield – The activity in the accretable yield for the FDIC Portfolios and Bank Portfolios during
the six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands):
Six Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

Beginning balance
Net additions
Accretions
Deletions

$

73,144
6,431
(22,078)
(18,927)

$ 112,899
40,879
(22,463)
(26,596)

Ending balance

$

38,570

$ 104,719

Additions primarily represent reclasses from nonaccretable difference to accretable yield on the portfolios.
Deletions represent loan impairments and disposal of loans, which includes foreclosure of underlying
collateral and result in the removal of the loans from the accretable yield portfolios as well as recoveries of
loan impairments if conditions change or improve. As the Company continues to obtain additional
information related to the expected cash flows on the acquired loans, the accretable yield may change.
Therefore, the amounts of accretable income recorded for the six months ended May 31, 2014, are not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in the future.
Loans Held-For-Sale – During the six months ended May 31, 2014, the Company originated loans with a
total principal balance of $692.2 million and sold $691.5 million of originated loans into three separate
securitizations. An additional $125.7 million of originated loans were sold into a securitization trust at May
31, 2014, but not yet closed as of May 31, 2014, and thus, the sale price of these loans was included as
Receivables, net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As of November 30, 2013, $109.3
million of originated loans were sold into a securitization trust but not yet closed, and thus, were included as
Receivables, net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
5.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
The allowance for loan losses is a valuation reserve established through provisions for loan losses charged
against income. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that management deems sufficient to
absorb probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged against
the allowance for loan losses, while recoveries of previously charged-off amounts are credited to the
allowance for loan losses.
The following table shows the activity related to the allowance for loan losses for the three and six months
ended May 31, 2014 (in thousands):
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2014
Accrual
Nonaccrual

Total

Accrual

Six Months Ended
May 31, 2014
Nonaccrual

Beginning balance
Provision for loan losses
Charge-offs

$

24,922
33,851
(3,115)

$

424
15
(153)

$

25,346
33,866
(3,268)

$

18,952
40,488
(3,782)

$

Ending balance

$

55,658

$

286

$

55,944

$

55,658

$
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1,213
94
(1,021)
286

Total

$

20,165
40,582
(4,803)

$

55,944

The following table shows the activity related to allowance for loan losses for the three and six months
ended May 31, 2013 (in thousands).
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2013
Accrual
Nonaccrual

Total

Accrual

Six Months Ended
May 31, 2013
Nonaccrual

Total

Beginning balance
Provision for loan losses
Charge-offs

$

16,851
3,453
(1,588)

$

1,710
68
(5)

$

18,561
3,521
(1,593)

$

12,178
9,530
(2,992)

$

3,722
1,080
(3,029)

$

15,900
10,610
(6,021)

Ending balance

$

18,716

$

1,773

$

20,489

$

18,716

$

1,773

$

20,489

At May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013, the carrying value of loans accounted for under ASC 310-30
totaled approximately $197.9 million and $270.1 million, respectively, and was assessed for impairment at
the pool level. The Company’s homogeneous pools are comprised of loans with similar characteristics such
as loan type and the geographical location of the underlying collateral. At May 31, 2014 and November 30,
2013, the Company had approximately $55.6 million and $19.0 million, respectively, of allowance for loan
losses against loans of this type.
At May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013, there were loans receivable with a carrying value of
approximately $5.2 million and $8.3 million, respectively, which are considered impaired under ASC 31010, and for which interest income was not being recognized as they were classified as nonaccrual. At May
31, 2014 and November 30, 2013, the Company had approximately $0.3 million and $1.2 million,
respectively, of allowance for loan losses against the nonaccrual loans.
When forecasted principal and interest cannot be reasonably estimated at the loan acquisition date,
management classifies the loan as nonaccrual and accounts for these assets in accordance with ASC 310-10.
When a loan is classified as nonaccrual, any subsequent cash receipt is accounted for using the cost recovery
method. In accordance with ASC 310-10, a loan is considered impaired when based on current information
and events it is probable that all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will
not be collected. Although these loans met the definition of ASC 310-10, these loans were not considered
impaired relative to the Company’s recorded investment at the time of acquisition since they were acquired
at a substantial discount to their unpaid principal balance. A provision for loan losses is recognized when the
recorded investment in the loan is in excess of its fair value. The fair value of the loan is determined by
using either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or
the fair value of the collateral less estimated costs to sell.
The following tables represent nonaccrual loans in the FDIC Portfolios and Bank Portfolios accounted for
under ASC 310-10 aggregated by collateral type at May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013 (in thousands):
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May 31, 2014
Recorded Investment
With
Without
Allowance
Allowance

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Collateral Type

Total
Recorded
Investment

Land
Single family homes
Commercial properties

$

5,218
9,166
1,500

$

502
-

$

2,106
1,983
607

$

2,106
2,485
607

Total

$

15,884

$

502

$

4,696

$

5,198

November 30, 2013
Recorded Investment
With
Without
Allowance
Allowance

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Collateral Type

Total
Recorded
Investment

Land
Single family homes
Commercial properties

$

6,791
15,125
3,400

$

249
519
498

$

2,304
4,119
628

$

2,553
4,638
1,126

Total

$

25,316

$

1,266

$

7,051

$

8,317

The average recorded investment in impaired loans totaled approximately $7 million and $37 million,
respectively, for the six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013.
The loans receivable portfolios consist of loans acquired at a discount. Based on the nature of these loans,
the portfolios are managed by assessing the risks related to the likelihood of collection of payments from
borrowers and guarantors, as well as monitoring the value of the underlying collateral. The following are the
risk categories for the loans receivable portfolios:
Accrual - Loans in which forecasted cash flows under the loan agreement, as it might be modified from time
to time, can be reasonably estimated at the date of acquisition. The risk associated with loans in this category
relates to the possible default by the borrower with respect to principal and interest payments and thus a
decline in the forecasted cash flows used to determine accretable yield income and the recognition of
impairment through an allowance for loan losses.
Nonaccrual - Loans in which forecasted principal and interest could not be reasonably estimated at the date
of acquisition. Although the Company believes the recorded investment balance will ultimately be realized,
the risk of nonaccrual loans relates to a decline in the value of the collateral securing the outstanding
obligation and the recognition of impairment through an allowance for loan losses if the recorded investment
in the loan exceeds the fair value of the collateral.
Risk categories net of allowance for loan losses at May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013 (in thousands):
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Collateral Type

Accrual

May 31, 2014
Nonaccrual

Total

Land
Single family homes
Commercial properties
Other

$ 103,096
47,323
31,894
15,679

$

2,106
2,485
607
-

$ 105,202
49,808
32,501
15,679

Total

$ 197,992

$

5,198

$ 203,190

Collateral Type

Accrual

November 30, 2013
Nonaccrual

Total

Land
Single family homes
Commercial properties
Other

$ 164,397
55,009
36,934
13,735

$

2,553
4,638
1,126
-

$ 166,950
59,647
38,060
13,735

Total

$ 270,075

$

8,317

$ 278,392

In order to assess the risk associated with each risk category, the Company evaluates the forecasted cash
flows and the value of the underlying collateral securing loans receivable on a quarterly basis or when an
event occurs that suggests a decline in the assets’ fair value.
6.

REAL ESTATE OWNED
The acquisition of properties acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are reported within the
consolidated balance sheets as REO held-and-used, net and REO held-for-sale. When a property is
determined to be held-and-used, net, the asset is recorded at fair value and depreciated over its useful life
using the straight line method. When certain criteria set forth in ASC 360, Property, Plant and Equipment,
(“ASC 360”), are met; the property is classified as held-for-sale. When a real estate asset is classified as
held-for-sale, the property is recorded at the lower of its cost basis or fair value less estimated costs to sell.
The fair value of REO held-for-sale are determined in part by placing reliance on third party appraisals of
the properties and/or internally prepared analyses of recent offers or prices on comparable properties in the
proximate vicinity.
Upon the acquisition of REO through loan foreclosure, gains and losses are recorded in REO expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The amount by which the recorded investment in the
loan is less than the REO’s fair value (net of estimated cost to sell if held-for-sale), is recorded as an
unrealized gain upon foreclosure. The amount by which the recorded investment in the loan is greater than
the REO’s fair value (net of estimated cost to sell if held-for-sale) is recorded as a provision for loan losses
for nonaccrual loans and as an unrealized loss within Other REO expense, net for accrual loans.
At times, the Company may foreclose on a loan from an accrual loan pool in which the removal of the loan
does not cause an overall decrease in the expected cash flows of the loan pool, and as such, no provision for
loan losses is required to be recorded. However, the amount by which the recorded investment in the loan is
greater than the REO’s fair value (net of estimated cost to sell if held-for-sale) is recorded as an unrealized
loss upon foreclosure.
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Included in real estate owned held-and-used, net is real estate acquired in a bargain purchase acquisition of
$35.0 million (see Note 7).
The following tables present the activity in REO for the three and six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands):
Three Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

Six Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

REO held-for-sale, beginning balance
Additions
Improvements
Sales
Impairments and unrealized losses
Transfer from held-and-used, net (1)

$ 186,234
1,130
(47,433)
(1,032)
53,930

$ 178,678
739
1,501
(51,496)
(3,485)
78,448

$ 197,851
2,723
(88,666)
(2,823)
83,744

$ 134,161
1,333
2,517
(77,276)
(4,184)
147,834

REO held-for-sale, ending balance

$ 192,829

$ 204,385

$ 192,829

$ 204,385

Three Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

Six Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

REO held-and-used, net, beginning balance
Additions
Improvements
Impairments
Depreciation
Transfer to held-for-sale (1)

$ 405,675
26,093
2,708
(599)
(878)
(53,930)

$ 547,273
8,536
2,179
(307)
(919)
(78,448)

$ 428,989
34,127
3,471
(1,503)
(2,271)
(83,744)

$ 601,022
24,728
2,879
(403)
(2,078)
(147,834)

REO held-and-used, net, ending balance

$ 379,069

$ 478,314

$ 379,069

$ 478,314

(1)

During the three and six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company transferred certain
properties from REO held-and-used, net to REO held-for-sale as a result of changes in the disposition
strategy of the real estate assets.

For the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, the Company recorded $14.2 million and $23.7 million,
respectively, of net gains from sales of REO. For the three and six months ended May 31, 2013, the
Company recorded $18.5 million and $27.2 million, respectively, of net gains from sales of REO. For the
three and six months ended May 31, 2014, the Company recorded net losses of $7.0 million and $7.1
million, respectively, from acquisitions of REO through foreclosure. For the three and six months ended
May 31, 2013, the Company recorded net losses of $3.2 million and $1.7 million, respectively, from
acquisitions of REO through foreclosure. These net gains (losses) are recorded in Other REO (income)
expense, net, in the consolidated statements of operations.
7.

ACQUISITIONS
Acquisition of Service Provider – Until January 2014, the Company had an approximately 5% investment in
a financial services company that had a business segment that provides service and infrastructure to the
residential home loan market (the “Service Provider”), and which has provided loan servicing support for the
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Company’s owned and managed portfolios and asset management services for the Company’s small balance
loan program. In January 2014, the Company acquired 100% of this business segment of the Service
Provider in exchange for the Company’s 5% interest mentioned above.
The following table outlines the assets and liabilities of the acquired business segment, net, at the time of
acquisition (in thousands):
Assets acquired

Restricted cash
Operating equipment
Deferred taxes
Goodwill
Other assets

$

Assets acquired

$

16,974
514
2,854
5,094
435
25,871

$

17,554

$

8,317

Liabilties assumed

Accounts payable and accruals and other liabilities
Net Assets Acquired

In connection with the acquisition of the Service Provider, the Company recognized goodwill at the time of
acquisition of $5.1 million. No goodwill impairment was recognized for the six months ended May 31,
2014.
Acquisition of Hospital – In November 2013, in settlement of a loan acquired as part of the Company’s Bank
Portfolios, the Company acquired the real estate and operating entity of a hospital (the “Hospital”). This
transaction was the result of a Chapter 11 reorganization plan approved on November 7, 2013. The first part
of the reorganization plan required Rialto to make a $10 million cash investment that will be used to
improve the hospital and emergency room facilities, provide for working capital requirements and begin to
repay secured and unsecured court approved claims per the reorganization plan. The Hospital guaranteed the
payment of bankruptcy administrative claims of approximately $17.5 million owed to three groups of
secured and unsecured creditors. In return, the Company acquired 100% of the Hospital operating entity
effective November 8, 2013 which became a fully consolidated entity of the Company.
The Company has contracted a third party hospital operating company (the “Third Party Operator”) to
operate and manage the hospital at a discount from their normal management fee in return for gradually
acquiring an equity participation in the hospital operating company. Additionally, the confirmed
reorganization plan exchanges a 20% equity interest in the entity that owns the Hospital’s land and building
for the administrative bankruptcy claims of several doctors who were original shareholders of the now
defunct hospital. The distribution of this noncontrolling interest to these doctors was conditioned and subject
to the validation of the administrative claims presented by them during bankruptcy. Furthermore, after
validation of the claims, any and all distributions will be in compliance with all State and Federal healthcare
regulatory requirements. As of May 31, 2014, Rialto’s healthcare attorney has not concluded the exact
amount of the claims that will be allowed, therefore; the noncontrolling interest has not been distributed.
Rialto has the right to withhold the distribution of this noncontrolling interest until all such requirements are
satisfied.
Upon profitability, each of the three secured creditor groups will receive payments of one-third of 75% of
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the Hospital’s net income plus 50% of the earned management fees withheld from the Third Party Operator
towards their claims, some of which bear interest of 0% to 5%. In addition, all excess operating cash flow
beyond the scheduled payments to secured creditors shall be used to accelerate payment in full of all of these
claims. Neither Rialto nor the Third Party Operator shall receive any distribution from operations other than
the reduced management fee and payments until all three groups of secured creditors have been paid in full,
which management believes can occur within 2 to 3 years.
As a result of this transaction, the Company recorded a provisional gain on acquisition of $8.5 million
during the year ended November 30, 2013, primarily consisting of the difference between the fair value of
the Hospital real estate collateral acquired and the carrying value of the loan receivable. The Company
completed its purchase price allocation in early 2014.
The following table outlines the adjusted assets and liabilities of the acquired entity, net at the time of
acquisition (in thousands):
Assets acquired

Real estate owned - held-and-used, net
Operating equipment
Other assets

$

Assets acquired

$

34,789
4,058
7,438
46,285

Liabilties assumed

Accounts payable and accruals and other liabilities
Notes payable
Noncontrolling interest

$

Liabilities assumed

$

4,521
12,397
3,360
20,278

$

26,007

Net Assets Acquired

8.

INVESTMENTS
Short-term Investment Securities
During the second quarter of 2014, the Company purchased a CMBS bond at a cost of $8.7 million and sold
the bond for $9.1 million, resulting in a gain of $0.4 million, disclosed as Gain on sale of investment
securities in the consolidated statement of operations.
Investments Held-to-Maturity
Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities - A non-investment grade CMBS totaling $43 million was
acquired in 2010 for $19.4 million, representing a 55% discount to par value. These securities bear interest at
a coupon rate of 4% and have a stated and assumed final distribution date of November 2020 and a stated
maturity date of October 2057. The Company reviews changes in estimated cash flows periodically, to
determine if other-than-temporary impairment has occurred on its investment securities. Based on the
Company’s assessment, no impairment charges were recorded during the six months ended May 31, 2014
and 2013. The carrying value of the investment securities at May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013 was
$16.7 million and $16.1 million, respectively. The fair value of the investment securities at May 31, 2014
and November 30, 2013, was $16.5 million and $16.0 million, respectively. The Company classified these
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securities as held-to-maturity based on its intent and ability to hold the securities until maturity.
In a CMBS transaction, monthly interest received from all of the pooled loans is paid to the investors,
starting with those investors holding the highest rated bonds and progressing in an order of seniority based
on the class of security. Based on the aforementioned, the principal and interest repayments of a particular
class are dependent upon collections on the underlying mortgages, which are affected by prepayments,
extensions and defaults.
Investments in Unconsolidated Entities
Investment Funds
Fund I – In 2010, the Company completed its first closing of Fund I. Fund I’s objective was to invest in
distressed real estate assets and other related investments that fit within Fund I’s investment parameters. As
of November 30, 2013, the total equity commitments of Fund I were $700 million (including $75 million
committed and contributed by the Company.) All capital commitments have been called, funded and
invested. In addition, approximately $330 million of proceeds from underlying asset activities and
financings were recycled and invested. Fund I has been closed to additional commitments. During the three
and six months ended May 31, 2014, the Company received distributions of $11.5 million and $14.8 million,
respectively, as a return of capital. During the three and six months ended May 31, 2013, the Company
received distributions of $29.4 million and $37.1 million, respectively, as a return of capital. As of May 31,
2014 and November 30, 2013, the carrying value of the Company’s investment in Fund I was $73.1 million
and $75.7 million, respectively. During the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, the Company’s share
of earnings from Fund I was $7.2 million and $12.2 million, respectively. During the three and six months
ended May 31, 2013, the Company’s share of earnings from Fund I was $4.7 million and $11.1 million,
respectively.
If Fund I had ceased operations and liquidated all its investments for their estimated fair values on May 31,
2014, the Company would have received $103.6 million with regard to the Company’s Carried Interest.
However, Fund I did not cease operations and liquidate its investments on May 31, 2014, and the ultimate
sum the Company will receive with regard to the Company’s Carried Interest in Fund I may be higher or
lower than $103.6 million. No amount has been recorded in the Company’s consolidated statement of
operations with regard to the Company’s Carried Interest in Fund I. See Note 2, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies in the notes to the consolidated financial statements for more information on how the
Company records revenues attributable to Carried Interest.
Fund II – In 2013, the Company conducted the first closing of commitments of Fund II. Fund II's objective
during its commitment period is to acquire and manage distressed and other value-add real estate assets and
other related investments that fit Fund II's investment parameters. Among other things, Fund II’s documents
prohibit the Company from acquiring real estate assets that might be suitable for Fund II, before Fund II is
fully invested or committed. As of February 28, 2014, Fund II was closed to additional commitments with
equity commitments of $1.3 billion, including $100 million by the Company. As of May 31, 2014, $660
million of the $1.3 billion in equity commitments had been called, of which, the Company contributed its
portion of $50.6 million. During the six months ended May 31, 2014, $148.6 million in equity commitments
was called, none of which was called from the Company due to new investors coming in to Fund II. During
the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, the Company received distributions of $1.6 million and $3.5
million, respectively. As of May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013, the carrying value of the Company's
investment in Fund II was $52.0 million and $53.1 million, respectively. For both the three and six months
ended May 31, 2014, the Company’s share of earnings from Fund II was $2.4 million.
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Mezzanine Fund – In 2013, the Company began raising capital and created the Mezzanine Fund with a target
of raising $300 million in equity to invest in mezzanine commercial loans. These loans are typically secured
by equity interests in the borrowing entity owning the real estate. As of May 31, 2014, the Mezzanine Fund
had total equity commitments of $125.0 million and capital invested of $81.7 million, including $27.3
million committed and $17.8 million invested by the Company, of which $8.6 million was contributed by
the Company, during the six months ended May 31, 2014. For both the three and six months ended May 31,
2014, the Company received distributions of $8.4 million. As of May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013, the
carrying value of the Company's investment in the Mezzanine Fund was $17.7 million and $16.7 million,
respectively. For the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, the Company's share of earnings from the
Mezzanine Fund was $0.5 million and $0.8 million, respectively.
CMBS Fund – In 2014, the Company created the CMBS Fund. The purpose of the CMBS Fund is to acquire,
own and/or monetize commercial mortgage-backed securities with at least some portion of the collateral
being originated by the RMF business line. As of May 31, 2014, the CMBS Fund had total committed and
invested capital of $20.0 million, including $12.2 million committed and invested by the Company. During
the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, the Company received distributions of $3.3 million and $5.9
million, respectively. As of May 31, 2014, the carrying value of the Company’s investment in the CMBS
Fund was $14.1 million. For both the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, the Company’s share of
earnings was $7.9 million.
Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund are unconsolidated entities and are accounted for
under the equity method of accounting. They were determined to have the attributes of an investment
company in accordance with ASC 946, Financial Services - Investment Companies, (“ASC 946”), as
amended by ASU 2013-08, the attributes of which are different from the attributes that would cause a
company to be an investment company for purposes of the Investment Company Act of 1940. As a result,
Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund’s assets are recorded at fair value with
increases/decreases in fair value recorded in their respective statement of operations, the Company’s share of
which will be recorded in equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. The Company determined that Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS
Fund are not variable interest entities but rather voting interest entities due to the following factors:
•
•

•

•

•

The Company determined that Rialto’s general partner interest and all the limited partners’
interests qualify as equity investment at risk.
Based on the capital structure of Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund (100%
capitalized via equity contributions), the Company was able to conclude that the equity investment
at risk was sufficient to allow Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund to finance
its activities without additional subordinated financial support.
The general partner and the limited partners in Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the
CMBS Fund, collectively, have full decision-making ability as they collectively have the power to
direct the activities of Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund, due to the fact
that Rialto, in addition to being a general partner with a substantive equity investment in Fund I,
Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund, also provides services to Fund I, Fund II, the
Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund under a management agreement and an investment
agreement, which are not separable from Rialto’s general partnership interest.
As a result of all these factors, the Company has concluded that the power to direct the activities of
Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund reside in its general partnership interest
and thus with the holders of the equity investment at risk.
In addition, there are no guaranteed returns provided to the equity investors and the equity
contributions are fully subjected to Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund’s
operational results, thus the equity investors absorb the expected negative and positive variability
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•

relative to Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund.
Finally, substantially all of the activities of Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS
Fund are not conducted on behalf of any individual investor or related group that has
disproportionately few voting rights (i.e., on behalf of any individual limited partner).

Having concluded that Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund are voting interest entities,
the Company evaluated the funds under the voting interest entity model to determine whether, as general
partner, it has control over Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund. The Company
determined that it does not control Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund as its general
partner, because the unaffiliated limited partners have substantial kick-out rights and can remove Rialto as
general partner at any time for cause or without cause through a simple majority vote of the limited partners.
In addition, there are no significant barriers to the exercise of these rights. As a result of determining that the
Company does not control Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund under the voting
interest entity model, Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund are not consolidated in the
Company’s financial statements.
The following table reflects the Company’s investments in private equity funds that invest in and manage
real estate related assets and other investments (in thousands):
May 31, 2014
Inception
Year

Rialto Real Estate Fund I, LP
Rialto Real Estate Fund II, LP
Rialto Mezzanine Partners Fund
Rialto Capital CMBS Fund, LP
Other Investments

2010
2012
2013
2014

Equity
Commitments
Called

Equity
Commitments

$

700,006
1,305,000
125,000
20,020

$

700,006
660,058
81,701
20,020

Commitment to
fund by the
Company

$

75,000
100,000
27,299
12,164

May 31, 2014

Funds contributed
by the Company

$

75,000
50,579
17,843
12,164

November 30, 2013

Investment

$ 73,188
52,020
17,719
14,063
703
$ 157,693

$

75,729
53,103
16,724
9,017
154,573

$

The Company’s share of earnings (loss) from unconsolidated entities was as follows (in thousands):
Three Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

Rialto Real Estate Fund I, LP
Rialto Real Estate Fund II, LP
Rialto Mezzanine Partners Fund
Rialto Capital CMBS Fund, LP
Other Investments

$ 7,174
2,402
493
7,855
15
$ 17,939

$ 4,769
(454)
190
$ 4,505

Six Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

$ 12,233
2,440
782
7,859
(21)
$ 23,293

$ 11,142
(454)
(10)
$ 10,678

Summarized Condensed Financial Information
On a consolidated 100% basis related to Rialto’s investments in unconsolidated entities that are accounted
for by the equity method was as follows as of May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013, and for the three and
six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):
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Balance Sheets
May 31,
2014

November 30,
2013

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans receivable
Real estate owned
Investments in partnerships
Investment securities
Other assets

$

$

262,145
561,167
318,846
455,634
224,605
37,231
1,859,628

$

34,141
344,138
1,481,349
1,859,628

$

$

332,968
523,249
285,565
149,350
381,555
191,624
1,864,311

Liabilities and equity:

Accounts payable and other liabilities
Notes payable
Partner loans
Equity

$

$

$

108,514
398,445
163,940
1,193,412
1,864,311

Statements of Operations
Three Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

Revenues
Costs and expenses
Other income, net (1)
Net earnings of unconsolidated entities
Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities
(1)

9.

$

$
$

33,177
23,304
104,868
114,741
17,939

$

$
$

65,956
65,595
38,786
39,147
4,505

Six Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

$

$
$

64,604
49,413
153,038
168,229
23,293

$

$
$

119,299
124,709
94,787
89,377
10,678

Other income, net for the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, includes Fund I, Fund II and CMBS
Fund’s realized and unrealized gains on investments as well as other income from REO. Other income, net
for the three and six months ended May 31, 2013, includes Fund I and Fund II’s realized and unrealized
gains on investments as well as the PPIP Fund’s mark-to-market unrealized gains and losses, of which the
Company's portion was a small percentage.

OTHER ASSETS - NET
The Company’s other assets – net consisted of the following at May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013 (in
thousands):
May 31,
2014

Management fee receivables from sponsored investment funds
Debt issuance costs - net
Operating equipment
Accounts receivable
Deposits and other
Total other assets - net
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$

$

5,261
8,592
13,671
24,291
14,394
66,209

November 30,
2013

$

$

8,200
6,910
14,959
7,653
5,566
43,288

10. NOTES PAYABLE AND OTHER DEBTS PAYABLE
The Company’s Notes payable and other debts payable consisted of the following at May 31, 2014 and
November 30, 2013 (in thousands):
May 31,
2014

Senior Notes
Bank Portfolios
Structured Notes
Warehouse Repurchase Facilities
Notes payable - other
Total Notes payable and other debts payable

$

$

352,148
90,933
73,830
44,424
16,581
577,916

November 30,
2013

$

$

250,000
90,933
76,017
24,933
441,883

In May 2014, the Company issued $73.8 million principal amount of notes through a securitized structured
note offering (the “Structured Notes”) collaterized by certain assets originally acquired in the Bank
Portfolios transactions at a price of 100%, with an annual coupon rate of 2.85%. Proceeds from the offering,
after payment of expenses and hold backs for cash reserves were $69.1 million. The estimated final payment
date from the Structured Notes is December 15, 2015. Monthly payments of principal and interest are based
on the priority of available cash per the cash management agreement. The overcollateralization percentage
required by the structure is defined as the ratio of the aggregated allocated basis and the balance in the
interest reserve account divided by the outstanding principal balance of the notes on each payment date to be
greater than 125%.
In November 2013, the Company issued $250 million aggregate principal amount of 7.00% senior notes due
2018 (the “7.00% Senior Notes”), at a price of 100% in a private placement. Proceeds from the offering,
after payment of expenses, were approximately $245 million. The Company used $100 million of the net
proceeds from the sale of the 7.00% Senior Notes, and subsequently an additional $135 million of working
capital, to repay sums that were previously advanced to the Company by Lennar. Interest on the 7.00%
Senior Notes is due on June 1 and December 1 of each year, and the 7.00% Senior Notes will mature on
December 1, 2018. In March 2014, the Company issued an additional $100 million aggregate principal
amount, as an add-on to the 7.00% Senior Notes, at a price of 102.25%, in a private placement. The terms
from the add-on offering have identical terms as the 7.00% Senior Notes. Proceeds from the offering, after
payment of expenses, were approximately $101.7 million. The Company is using most of the funds to
provide additional working capital to its RMF business, in addition to funding contributions to its investment
funds or for other general corporate purposes. At May 31, 2014, the carrying amount of the 7.00% Senior
Notes were $352.1 million.
The Company may redeem all or a portion of the 7.00% Senior Notes at the following redemption prices
(expressed as a percentage of principal) beginning December 1 of each of the years indicated below:
Year

Percentage

2015
2016
2017

103.50%
101.75%
100.00%

The Company must also pay any accrued and unpaid interest through, but not including, the date of
redemption. The Company may redeem all or a portion of the 7.00% Senior Notes at any time, before
December 1, 2015, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount, plus a make-whole
premium and accrued and unpaid interest. Before December 1, 2015, the Company may redeem up to 35%
of the aggregate principal amount of the 7.00% Senior Notes with the proceeds of public offerings of equity
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at a redemption price equal to 107% of the principal amount of the 7.00% Senior Notes, plus accrued and
unpaid interest.
Under the indenture governing the 7.00% Senior Notes, the Company is subject to certain covenants
limiting, among other things, the Company’s ability to incur indebtedness, to make investments, to make
distributions to, or enter into transactions with, Lennar or to create liens subject to certain exceptions and
qualifications. The Company is in compliance with all debt covenants as of May 31, 2014.
The 7.00% Senior Notes are Rialto’s senior unsecured and unsubordinated obligations, rank equally with all
of Rialto’s other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness, and are senior to any of Rialto’s future
indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the 7.00% Senior Notes and junior to any
of Rialto’s secured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the assets securing that indebtedness. The
Rialto 7.00% Senior Notes are guaranteed by existing and future directly or indirectly 100% owned
subsidiaries other than subsidiaries which Rialto designates as unrestricted subsidiaries (which subject those
subsidiaries to limits on investments by the Company and other restrictions). A 100% owned subsidiary can
only become an unrestricted subsidiary if it is a borrower under a warehouse repurchase facility or is
prevented from guaranteeing the 7.00% Senior Notes by any applicable law, regulation or contractual
restriction which cannot be removed through commercially reasonable efforts.
Upon a Change of Control Triggering Event, the Company will be required to make an offer to repurchase
all the outstanding 7.00% Senior Notes at a price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amount of the 7.00%
Senior Notes, plus any accrued and unpaid interest to, but not including, the repurchase date. See further
discussion of how the 7.00% Senior Notes affected the Company’s relationship with Lennar in Note 15.
During 2013 the Company also secured an additional $75 million revolving credit agreement with Lennar.
Under the revolving credit agreement, Lennar will, as requested by the Company and subject to customary
lending conditions, make advances to the Company on a revolving basis of up to $75 million. The maturity
date will be two years from the date of signing and the Company will pay interest on the advances at a rate
of LIBOR plus 3.5%. The Company is subject to certain customary covenants, including, but not limited to,
limitations on fundamental changes, limitations on changes to line of business and transactions with
affiliates. The Company may prepay outstanding amounts at any time, without premium or penalty, on 10
business days’ prior notice. The Company and Lennar may mutually agree to amend or terminate such credit
agreement at any time. At May 31, 2014, no amounts were outstanding under this agreement and no amounts
had been borrowed or repaid under this agreement.
In September 2010, the Company acquired approximately 400 distressed residential and commercial real
estate loans and over 300 REO properties from three financial institutions. The Company paid $310 million
for the distressed real estate and real estate related assets of which $124 million was financed through a 5year senior unsecured note provided by one of the selling institutions of which $33.0 million of principal
amount was retired in 2012. The Bank Portfolios’ notes payable have an interest rate of the higher of 4.5%
or 1 month LIBOR plus 3.75%. As of both May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013, there was $90.9 million
outstanding.
In January 2014, the Company extended the maturity date of the Bank Portfolio’s note payable from
September 30, 2013 to September 30, 2016. Additionally, in February 2014, the Company rescheduled the
three remaining principal payments of $30.3 million to be due on December 15, 2014, 2015 and 2016.
As of November 30, 2013, the Company had secured two warehouse repurchase financing agreements for
use in the RMF business that mature in in fiscal year 2015 totaling $500 million to help finance the loans the
Company originates. The first facility has a maturity date of August 9, 2015 with an option for a one time,
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one year extension. The second Facility has a maturity date of October 8, 2015 with an option for a one time,
one year extension. These Facilities are in the form of two separate repurchase agreements, and each is
secured by a 75% interest in the originated commercial loans financed under the Facility. Both ofthese
Facilities bear interest at LIBOR plus 2.25% (with one subject to a LIBOR floor of 0.25%) calculated on the
then outstanding principal amount (2.5% at May 31, 2014). The Facilities require the Company to maintain a
minimum liquidity, tangible net worth, interest coverage and debt to equity ratios. The Company is in
compliance with all debt covenants as of May 31, 2014. The Facilities require immediate repayment of the
75% interest in the secured commercial loans when the loans are sold in a securitization. As of May 31,
2014 and November 30, 2013, the Company had $44.4 million and $76.0 million, respectively, outstanding
under the Facilities.
On January 31, 2011, the Company obtained a monetary judgment on an unpaid principal balance of a loan
receivable. Effective May 2, 2011, the Company entered into a settlement agreement in consideration for a
stay of execution on the monetary judgment and agreed to accept the conveyance of full and partial
ownership interests in entities that own numerous real estate assets. The real estate assets are comprised
primarily of commercial office buildings. At the time the Company acquired these ownership interests, the
underlying assets had a fair value of approximately $20.5 million including the assumption of notes payable
totaling approximately $15.1 million which are reflected within Notes payable – other, in the table above. As
part of the settlement agreement, the Company also accepted a secured promissory note receivable in the
amount of $2.5 million from the obligor which is included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet
within Loans receivable, net. The note bears interest at 5% per annum and requires interest only payments of
$125,000 over the next five years with the principal amount due on May 30, 2016. The $2.5 million
promissory note is secured by a stock pledge and pledge of cash distributions from additional commercial
office building assets, of which the obligor is an owner.
See Note 7 for further discussion of the remaining notes payable included in the notes payable – other line
item above.
In connection with the acquisition of the FDIC Portfolios, the FDIC provided $626.9 million of financing
with 0% interest, which was non-recourse to the Company and the LLCs and has been paid off as of
November 30, 2013. Pursuant to ASC 835-30, Imputed Interest, (“ASC 835-30”), interest was not imputed,
as the Notes were issued and guaranteed by a governmental agency. The notes were secured by the loans
held by the LLCs. Additionally, if the LLCs exceed expectations and meet certain internal rate of return and
distribution thresholds, the Company’s equity interest in the LLCs could be reduced from 40% down to
30%, with a corresponding increase to the FDIC’s equity interest from 60% to 70%. As these thresholds
have not been met, distributions will continue being shared 60% / 40% with the FDIC. During the three
months ended May 31, 2014, $45.1 million had been distributed by the LLCs, of which $27.4 million was
paid to the FDIC and $17.7 million was paid to the Company. During the six months ended May 31, 2014,
$98.2 million had been distributed by the LLCs, of which $59.6 million was paid to the FDIC and $38.6
million was paid to the Company.
Notes payable and other debts payable have interest rates ranging from 0.00% to 7.00%, and mature as
follows as of May 31, 2014 (in thousands):

- 29 -

Year

Amount

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereafter

$

48,659
33,639
111,027
31,462
353,081
48

Total Notes payable and other debts payable

$

577,916

11. OTHER REO EXPENSE (INCOME), NET
The Company’s Other REO expense (income), net consisted of the following for the three and six months
ended May 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):
Three Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

Six Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

Realized gains on the sale of REO
Unrealized losses on loan foreclosure
Impairment on REO
REO expenses

$ (14,234)
7,040
1,234
8,203

$ (18,535)
3,188
3,792
10,348

$ (23,743)
7,108
3,543
20,067

$ (27,206)
1,723
4,587
22,904

Other REO expense (income), net

$

$ (1,207)

$

$

2,243

6,975

2,008

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments held by
the Company at May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013 (in thousands), respectively, using available market
information and what the Company believes to be appropriate valuation methodologies. Considerable
judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. The use of different
market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies might have a material effect on the estimated fair value
amounts. The table excludes cash, restricted cash, receivables, net, accounts payable and due to Parent,
which had fair values approximating their carrying amounts due to the short maturities and liquidity of these
instruments.

Assets

Loans receivable, net
Investments held-to-maturity

May 31,
2014
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value

Fair Value
Hierarchy

November 30,
2013
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value

Level 3
Level 3

$
$

203,190 $
16,658 $

204,601
16,532

$
$

278,392 $
16,070 $

305,810
15,952

Level 2
Level 2

$
$

533,492 $
44,424 $

539,253
44,424

$
$

365,866 $
76,017 $

362,356
76,017

Liabilities

Notes payable and other debts payable
Warehouse repurchase facilities
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The following methods and assumptions are used by the Company in estimating fair value:
Loans Receivable, net - The fair value of loans receivable, net is based on discounted cash flows as of May
31, 2014 and November 30, 2013, respectively, or the fair value of the underlying collateral less estimated
cost to sell.
Investments Held-to-Maturity - The fair value for investments held-to-maturity is based on discounted cash
flows.
Notes Payable and other debts payable - The fair value of notes payable was calculated based on discounted
cash flows using the Company’s weighted average borrowing rate. For the Structured Note, the pricing of
the debt is largely dependent on the collateral risk profile, making the structure unique. While the market is
currently developing around different deal structures for such a note offering, management believes carrying
value approximates fair value.
Warehouse Repurchase Facilities - The fair value of the warehouse repurchase facilities is assumed to
approximate its carrying value because of its short duration and variable interest rates.
Loans Held-for-Sale - The fair value of loans held-for-sale is calculated from model-based techniques that
use discounted cash flow assumptions and the Company’s own estimates of CMBS spreads, market interest
rate movements and the underlying loan credit quality. Loan values are calculated by allocating the change
in value of an assumed CMBS capital structure to each loan. The value of an assumed CMBS capital
structure is calculated, generally, by discounting the cash flows associated with each CMBS class at market
interest rates and at the Company’s own estimate of CMBS spreads. The Company estimates CMBS spreads
by observing the pricing of recent CMBS offerings, secondary CMBS markets, changes in the CMBX index,
and general capital and commercial real estate market conditions. Considerations in estimating CMBS
spreads include comparing the Company’s current loan portfolio with comparable CMBS offerings
containing loans with similar duration, credit quality and collateral composition. These methods use
unobservable inputs in estimating a discount rate that is used to assign a value to each loan. While the cash
payments on the loans are contractual, the discount rate used and assumptions regarding the relative size of
each class in the CMBS capital structure can significantly impact the valuation. Therefore, the estimates
used could differ materially from the fair value determined when the loans are sold to a securitization trust.
Interest Rate Swaps and Swap Futures – The fair value of interest rate swaps and swap futures (derivatives)
is based on quoted market prices for identical investments traded in active markets.
Credit Default Swaps – The fair value of credit default swaps (derivatives) is based on quoted market prices
for similar investments traded in active markets.
During the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, there have been no changes in the Company’s
valuation methodologies.
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Fair Value Measurements - Authoritative accounting literature establishes a framework for using fair value
to measure assets and liabilities and defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) as opposed to the price that would be paid to acquire the asset or
received to assume the liability (an entry price). A fair value measure should reflect the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including the assumptions about the risk
inherent in a particular valuation technique, the effect of a restriction on the sale or use of an asset, and the
risk of nonperformance. Required disclosures include stratification of balance sheet amounts measured at
fair value based on inputs the Company uses to derive fair value measurements. These levels include:


Level 1 valuations, where the valuation is based on quoted market prices for identical assets or
liabilities traded in active markets (which include exchanges and over-the-counter markets with
sufficient volume).



Level 2 valuations, where the valuation is based on quoted market prices for similar instruments
traded in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not
active, and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in
the market.



Level 3 valuations, where the valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use
significant assumptions not observable in the market, but observable based on Company-specific
data. These unobservable assumptions reflect the Company’s own estimates for assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques typically include
discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, but may also include the use of market prices
of assets or liabilities that are not directly comparable to the subject asset or liability.

Fair Value on a Recurring Basis - Assets accounted for under ASC 825 are initially measured at fair value.
Expected gains and losses from initial measurement and subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in
revenue.
The Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of May 31, 2014 and
November 30, 2013, are summarized below (in thousands):
May 31, 2014
Fair
Total
Value
Gains (Losses)

Fair Value
Hierarchy
Financial Assets

Loans held-for-sale (1)
Credit default swaps

Level 3
Level 2

$

Level 1
Level 2

$

45,065
1,219

$

242
431

$

(394)
(328)

Financial Liabilities

Interest rate swaps and swap futures
Credit default swaps
(1)

(425)
(646)

The aggregate fair value of loans held-for-sale of $45.1 million at May 31, 2014, exceeds their aggregate
principal balance of $44.4 million by $0.7 million.
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November 30, 2013
Fair
Total
Value
Gains (Losses)

Fair Value
Hierarchy
Financial Assets

Loans held-for-sale (1)
Credit default swaps

Level 3
Level 2

$

44,228
788

$

33
788

Level 1
Level 2

$

31
318

$

(31)
(318)

Financial Liabilities

Interest rate swap futures
Credit default swaps
(1)

The aggregate fair value of loans held-for-sale of $44.2 million at November 30, 2013, exceeds their
aggregate principal balance of $44.0 million by $0.2 million.

The following table represents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance for the Company’s
Level 3 recurring fair value measurements of loans held-for-sale (in thousands):
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2014

Loans held-for-sale, beginning of period
Loan originations
Originated loans sold, including those not settled
Interest and principal paydowns
Changes in fair value
Loans held-for-sale, end of period

$

$

Six Months Ended
May 31, 2014

86,857
396,648
(438,498)
370
(312)
45,065

$

44,228
692,155
(691,536)
(23)
241
45,065

$

Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis - From time to time, certain assets may be recorded at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis. These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically are a result of real estate acquisition
through foreclosure, the application of the lower of cost or fair value accounting and impairments. For
example, if the fair value of an asset in these categories falls below its cost basis, it is considered to be at fair
value at the end of the period of the adjustment. In periods where there is no adjustment, the asset is
generally not considered to be at fair value. The assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis are
summarized below (in thousands):
Three Months Ended May 31, 2014
Fair Value
Fair
Total Net
Value
Losses
Hierarchy
Financial Assets

Impaired loans receivable

Level 3

$ 162,306

$

(33,867)

Level 3
Level 3

$ 27,998
10,007

$

(7,242)
(1,032)

Non-Financial Assets

REO - held-and-used, net (1)
REO - held-for-sale (2)
(1)

REO - held-and-used, net, assets are initially recorded at fair value at the time of acquisition through, or in
lieu of, loan foreclosure. Upon acquisition, the REO, held-and-used, net, had a carrying value of $32.3
million and a fair value of $25.7million. The fair value of REO, held-and-used, net, is based upon the
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appraised value at the time of foreclosure or management’s best estimate. The losses upon acquisition of
REO, held-and-used, net, were $6.6 million. As part of management’s periodic valuations of its REO,
held-and-used, net, during the three months ended May 31, 2014, REO, held-and-used, net, with an
aggregate value of $2.9 million were written down to their fair value of $2.3 million, resulting in
impairments of $0.6 million. These losses and impairments are included within Other REO expense
(income), net, in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended May 31,
2014.
(2)

REO - held-for-sale, assets are initially recorded at fair value less estimated costs to sell at the time of
transfer. Upon transfer from REO, held-and-used, net, the REO, held-for-sale, had a carrying value of $6.6
million and a fair value of $6.2 million. The fair value of REO, held-for-sale, is based upon the appraised
value at the time of transfer or management’s best estimate. The losses upon transfer of REO, held-forsale, were $0.4 million. As part of management’s periodic valuations of its REO, held-for-sale, during the
three months ended May 31, 2014, REO, held-for-sale, with an aggregate value of $4.4 million were
written down to their fair value of $3.8 million, resulting in impairments of $0.6 million. These losses and
impairments are included within Other REO expense (income), net, in the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations for the three months ended May 31, 2014.
Three Months Ended May 31, 2013
Fair Value
Fair
Total
Hierarchy
Value
Gains (Losses)

Financial Assets

Impaired loans receivable

Level 3

$ 174,709

$

3,521

Level 3
Level 3

$

$

(2,407)
(4,573)

Non-Financial Assets

REO - held-and-used, net (1)
REO - held-for-sale (2)

8,949
11,573

(1)

REO - held-and-used, net, assets are initially recorded at fair value at the time of acquisition through, or in
lieu of, loan foreclosure. Upon acquisition, the REO, held-and-used, net, had a carrying value of $10.6
million and a fair value of $8.5 million. The fair value of REO, held-and-used, net, is based upon the
appraised value at the time of foreclosure or management’s best estimate. The losses upon acquisition of
REO, held-and-used, net, were $2.1 million. As part of management’s periodic valuations of its REO,
held-and-used, net, during the three months ended May 31, 2013, REO, held-and-used, net, with an
aggregate value of $0.7 million were written down to their fair value of $0.4 million, resulting in
impairments of $0.3 million. These losses and impairments are included within Other REO expense
(income), net in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended May 31,
2013.

(2)

REO - held-for-sale, assets are initially recorded at fair value less estimated costs to sell at the time of
acquisition through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure. Upon acquisition, the REO held-for-sale, net, had a
carrying value of $1.8 million and a fair value of $0.7 million. The fair value of REO held-for-sale, net, is
based upon the appraised value at the time of foreclosure or management’s best estimate. The losses upon
acquisition of REO held-for-sale, net, were $1.1 million. As part of management's periodic valuations of
its REO held-for-sale, net, during the three months ended May 31, 2013, REO held-for-sale, net, with an
aggregate value of $14.3 million were written down to their fair value of $10.8 million, resulting in
impairments of $3.5 million. These losses and impairments are included within Other REO expense
(income), net in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended May 31,
2013.
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Six Months Ended May 31, 2014
Fair Value
Fair
Total Net
Value
Losses
Hierarchy
Financial Assets

Impaired loans receivable

Level 3

$ 132,745

$

(40,583)

Level 3
Level 3

$ 44,677
33,967

$

(7,828)
(2,823)

Non-Financial Assets

REO - held-and-used, net (1)
REO - held-for-sale (2)
(1)

REO - held-and-used, net, assets are initially recorded at fair value at the time of acquisition through, or in
lieu of, loan foreclosure. Upon acquisition, the REO, held-and-used, net, had a carrying value of $40.1
million and a fair value of $33.7 million. The fair value of REO, held-and-used, net, is based upon the
appraised value at the time of foreclosure or management’s best estimate. The losses upon acquisition of
REO, held-and-used, net, were $6.3 million. As part of management’s periodic valuations of its REO,
held-and-used, net, during the six months ended May 31, 2014, REO, held-and-used, net, with an
aggregate value of $12.4 million were written down to their fair value of $10.9 million, resulting in
impairments of $1.5 million. These losses and impairments are included within Other REO expense
(income), net, in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended May 31,
2014.

(2)

REO - held-for-sale, assets are initially recorded at fair value less estimated costs to sell at the time of
transfer. Upon transfer from REO, held-and-used, net, the REO, held-for-sale, had a carrying value of
$13.1 million and a fair value of $12.3 million. The fair value of REO, held-for-sale, is based upon the
appraised value at the time of transfer or management’s best estimate. The losses upon transfer of REO,
held-for-sale, were $0.8 million. As part of management’s periodic valuations of its REO, held-for-sale,
during the six months ended May 31, 2014, REO, held-for-sale, with an aggregate value of $23.7 million
were written down to their fair value of $21.7 million, resulting in impairments of $2.0 million. These
losses and impairments are included within Other REO expense (income), net, in the Company’s
consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended May 31, 2014.
Six Months Ended May 31, 2013
Fair Value
Fair
Total
Hierarchy
Value
Losses

Financial Assets

Impaired loans receivable

Level 3

$ 354,566

$

(10,610)

Level 3
Level 3

$ 27,160
20,020

$

(1,466)
(4,844)

Non-Financial Assets

REO - held-and-used, net (1)
REO - held-for-sale (2)
(1)

REO - held-and-used, net, assets are initially recorded at fair value at the time of acquisition through, or in
lieu of, loan foreclosure. Upon acquisition, the REO, held-and-used, net, had a carrying value of $25.8
million and a fair value of $24.7 million. The fair value of REO, held-and-used, net, is based upon the
appraised value at the time of foreclosure or management’s best estimate. The losses upon acquisition of
REO, held-and-used, net, were $1.1 million. As part of management’s periodic valuations of its REO,
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held-and-used, net, during the six months ended May 31, 2013, REO, held-and-used, net, with an
aggregate value of $2.8 million were written down to their fair value of $2.4 million, resulting in
impairments of $0.4 million. These losses and impairments are included within Other REO expense
(income), net in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended May 31,
2013.
(2)

REO - held-for-sale, assets are initially recorded at fair value less estimated costs to sell at the time of
acquisition through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure. Upon acquisition, the REO held-for-sale, net, had a
carrying value of $2.0 million and a fair value of $1.3 million. The fair value of REO held-for-sale, net, is
based upon the appraised value at the time of foreclosure or management’s best estimate. The losses upon
acquisition of REO held-for-sale, net, were $0.7 million. As part of management's periodic valuations of
its REO held-for-sale, net, during the three months ended May 31, 2013, REO held-for-sale, net, with an
aggregate value of $22.9 million were written down to their fair value of $18.7 million, resulting in
impairments of $4.2 million. These losses and impairments are included within Other REO expense
(income), net in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended May 31,
2013.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for certain assets that are potentially
recorded at fair value on a nonrecurring basis:
Loans Receivable - If impaired, the fair value of nonaccrual loans is based on discounted cash flows, or the
fair value of the collateral less estimated disposition costs. If impaired, the fair value of accrual loan pools
are based on discounted cash flows. The fair value of the real estate is determined through a combination of
appraisals, broker opinions of value, and management’s best estimate. The fair value of the underlying
collateral is determined in part by placing reliance on independent third-party appraisals of the properties
and/or internally prepared analysis of recent offers or prices on comparable properties in the proximate
vicinity.
Real Estate Owned – Held-and-Used, net and Held-for-Sale - Real estate owned classified as held and used
is initially recorded at fair value and real estate classified as held for sale is recorded at fair value less
estimated disposition costs at the time of acquisition. The fair values of these assets are determined in part
by placing reliance on independent third-party appraisals of the properties and/or internally prepared
analysis of recent offers or prices on comparable properties in the proximate vicinity.
13. INCOME TAXES
Rialto is included in the consolidated federal income tax return of Lennar. However, in accordance with the
tax sharing arrangement with Lennar, income taxes have been provided as if the Rialto reporting group filed
as a separate federal consolidated group. Current income tax expense is recorded as an increase in amounts
due to Parent. As such, no income tax payments are made directly by Rialto. Income taxes are accounted for
in accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes, (“ASC 740”). Under ASC 740, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between financial reporting carrying values and tax
bases of assets and liabilities, and are measured by using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those differences are expected to reverse.
During the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, the Company recorded tax provisions of $5.2 million
and $6.2 million, respectively. During the three and six months ended May 31, 2013, the Company recorded
tax provisions of $1.5 million and $2.1 million, respectively. The actual income tax differs from the
“expected” tax expense for the year (computed by applying the U.S. federal corporate tax rate of 35% to
earnings before income taxes) primarily due to the amount of state income taxes, net of the related federal
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tax benefit.
A reduction of the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance is required if, based on
the available evidence, it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized. In accordance with the
tax sharing arrangement with Lennar, income taxes have been provided as if the Rialto reporting group filed
as a separate federal consolidated group. Therefore, the need to establish a valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets is assessed periodically by the Company based on the more-likely-than-not realization threshold
criterion. In the assessment for a valuation allowance, appropriate consideration is given to all positive and
negative evidence related to the realization of the deferred tax assets. This assessment considers, among
other matters, the nature, frequency and severity of current and cumulative losses, forecasts of future
profitability and the duration of statutory carryforward periods.
At May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013, Rialto had a net deferred tax asset totaling $7.4 million and a net
deferred tax liability totaling $7.8 million, respectively. As of May 31, 2014 and November 30, 2013, the
Company concluded that it was more likely than not that Rialto’s deferred tax assets would be utilized. This
conclusion was based on a detailed evaluation of all relevant evidence, both positive and negative. As a
result, no valuation allowance is required.
In accordance with the tax sharing arrangement with Lennar, for periods prior to September 1, 2013, the
gross unrecognized tax benefits of Lennar were allocated to the Company on a pro rata basis based on
revenues. Beginning with tax year November 30, 2013, the Company has determined that an evaluation of
the Company’s standalone uncertain tax positions would be more meaningful than an allocation of Lennar’s
uncertain tax positions. Accordingly, gross unrecognized tax benefits of Lennar are no longer being
allocated but rather the Company’s standalone unrecognized tax benefits are evaluated independent of the
gross unrecognized tax benefits of Lennar.
At May 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had $0.0 million and $0.4 million respectively, of gross
unrecognized tax benefits. As the Company has no unrecognized tax benefit at May 31, 2014, there is no
effect on the Company’s effective tax rate. As of May 31, 2014, the Company did not have any amount
accrued for interest and penalties. The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to
unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for income taxes.
The IRS is currently examining Lennar’s federal income tax return for fiscal year 2012 which includes the
results of the Company. Additionally, certain state taxing authorities are examining various fiscal years of
Lennar. The final outcome of these examinations is not yet determinable. The statute of limitations for
Lennar and the Company’s major tax jurisdictions remains open for examination for fiscal year 2005 and
subsequent years. Lennar participates in an IRS examination program, Compliance Assurance Process,
"CAP." This program operates as a contemporaneous exam throughout the year in order to keep exam cycles
current and achieve a higher level of compliance.
14. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS
The Company is party to various claims, legal actions and complaints arising in the ordinary course of
business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

- 37 -

The following table summarizes certain of the Company’s contractual obligations at May 31, 2014 (in
thousands):

Total

Notes payable and other debts payable (1)
Warehouse repurchase facilities (2)
Interest commitments under interest bearing debt (3)
Investment commitments (4)
RMF rate lock commitment (5)
Operating leases
Total contractual obligations

$

$

533,492
44,424
118,300
58,877
34,875
8,637
798,605

Less than
1 year

$

4,235
44,424
14,885
58,877
34,875
877
$ 158,173

Payments Due by Period
1 to 3
3 to 5
years
years

$ 144,666
54,207
3,918
$ 202,791

$ 384,543
49,186
3,842
$ 437,571

More than
5 years

$

$

48
22
70

(1)

Amount includes $73.8 million related to notes issued through a securitized structured note offering with
an assumed final payment date of December 15, 2015.
(2)
Warehouse facilities are assumed to be paid off in the short term as soon as loans held-for-sale are
securitized, which is normally within 2 to 3 months.
(3)
Interest commitments on variable interest bearing debt are determined based on the interest rate as of May
31, 2014.
(4)
Amount includes the Company’s capital commitments to Fund II and the Mezzanine Fund.
(5)
Relates to two loans the Company is contractually obligated to fund but has yet to release the funds to the
borrower.
15. PARENT COMPANY TRANSACTIONS
Rialto Holdings, LLC, formed in 2013 in order to facilitate the offering of the 7.00% Senior Notes, is a
direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Lennar. Rialto Corporation, a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Rialto
Holdings, LLC, was formed in 2013 for the sole purpose of acting as a co-issuer. However, Rialto Capital
Management, LLC and Rialto Investments, LLC, each a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Rialto Holdings,
LLC, were founded in 2007 and 2009, respectively. Prior to the 7.00% Senior Notes offering, Lennar had
provided all the funds that had been used by the Company, other than funds generated from assets that were
owned, or fees or proceeds of management fees the Company received. On November 14, 2013, the day the
7.00% Senior Notes were issued, Lennar contributed to the Company’s equity the entire outstanding balance
of the amount it had invested in the Company (an amount previously classified as “Due to Parent”) in excess
of $235 million. The $235 million remaining constituted indebtedness of the Company to Lennar. However,
the Company applied $100 million of the gross proceeds of the sale of the 7.00% Senior Notes and $135
million of working capital to fully retire this indebtedness as of November 30, 2013.
The 7.00% Senior Notes indenture limits the ability of the Company or any of the Company’s Restricted
Subsidiaries (as defined in the indenture governing the 7.00% Senior Notes) to make distributions, other
than the repayment of indebtedness owed, to Lennar. However, these limits will not apply at any time when
the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries have a Consolidated Non-Funding Debt to Equity Ratio (as
such term is defined in the 7.00% Senior Notes Indenture dated November 14, 2013) of 1.50 to 1.00 or less.
Pursuant to the Company’s Operating Agreement, the Company’s sole member, Lennar, has the authority,
power, and discretion to manage and control the business, affairs, and properties of the Company, to make
all decisions regarding those matters and to perform any and all other acts customary or incident to the
management of the Company’s business. Additionally, in the Company’s Operating Agreement, the
Company agrees to indemnify the Company’s members, manager, officers, and employees against losses,
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claims, damages and liabilities except in certain circumstances outlined in the Operating Agreement (i.e., in
instances of gross negligence, willful misconduct or fraud).
Revolving Credit Agreement – Lennar will have no obligation to provide additional funds to the Company,
other than pursuant to a revolving credit agreement between Lennar and the Company. Under the revolving
credit agreement, Lennar will, subject to customary lending conditions, make advances to the Company on a
revolving basis of up to $75 million. The maturity date will be November 22, 2015 and the Company will
pay interest on advances at LIBOR plus 3.5% for the applicable interest period. The Company is subject to
certain customary covenants, including, but not limited to, limitations on fundamental changes, limitations
on changes to line of business and transactions with affiliates. The Company may repay outstanding amounts
at any time, without premium or penalty, on 10 business days’ prior notice, and may re-borrow sums it
repays. As of May 31, 2014, no amounts were outstanding under this agreement and no amounts had been
borrowed or repaid under this agreement.
Support Services and Expense Reimbursement Agreement – Prior to the 7.00% Senior Notes offering,
Lennar had provided management, treasury, information technology, income tax, payroll and administrative
services to the Company and to its subsidiaries. In the past, Lennar has not charged the Company for those
services (although Lennar did require the Company to reimburse it for rent and other operating costs it
advanced on the Company’s behalf). However, on November 26, 2013, Lennar and the Company entered
into a Support Services and Expense Reimbursement Agreement under which Lennar has agreed to provide
specified accounting, information technology, tax, legal, human resources, treasury, occupancy, office and
other administrative services to the Company and its subsidiaries and the Company will pay a fee equal to
the lower of the actual cost or fair market value of those services to Lennar. As of May 31, 2014, $0.3
million was charged by Lennar to the Company and $0.8 million was paid by the Company to Lennar under
this agreement.
Tax Reimbursement Agreement – The Company and most of its subsidiaries are not recognized as taxpayers
for Federal income tax purposes or for income tax purposes in some states. Instead, its taxable income and
the taxable income of its subsidiaries that are limited liability companies and other types of non-corporate
entities, is treated as taxable income of Lennar. Because Lennar, as the Company’s sole member, is required
to include at least most of the Company’s Federal taxable income in Lennar’s Federal taxable income, the
Company entered into a Tax Reimbursement Agreement on November 26, 2013, which was effective
September 1, 2013, pursuant to which the Company will pay Lennar, each time the Company would be
required to pay Federal or state income taxes if it were a taxable corporation, the sum equal to the Federal or
state income tax the Company would have been required to pay if it and its subsidiaries were all taxable
corporations, minus any Federal or state income taxes the Company or its subsidiaries actually pay. The
Company will make such payment to Lennar 5 days prior to the date on which Lennar files applicable tax
returns. This agreement will terminate if the Company is no longer a subsidiary of Lennar. As of May 31,
2014 and November 30, 2013, the Company has $9.6 million and $12.4 million, respectively, recorded as a
liability to Lennar under this Tax Reimbursement Agreement on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.
Prior to the 7.00% Senior Notes Offering – Prior to November 2013, cash funding had been provided by the
Parent for operating capital on an as-needed basis. Excess operating funds generated by the Company and
any cash distributions from unconsolidated entities had been swept back to Lennar. No interest had been
charged for the use of funds provided by the Parent. All cash funding, net of amounts swept back to Lennar
were recorded as Due to Parent for periods prior to November 2013.
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16. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2011-11, Disclosures
about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities, (“ASU 2011-11”), which requires entities to disclose information
about offsetting and related arrangements of financial instruments and derivative instruments. In January
2013, this guidance was amended by ASU 2013-01, Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting
assets and Liabilities ("ASU 2013-01"). ASU 2013-01 limits the scope of ASU 2011-11 to certain
derivatives, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, and securities borrowing and lending
transactions. The guidance is effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning December 1, 2013 and
subsequent interim periods. The adoption of this guidance, which is related to disclosure only, did not have a
material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In April 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-04, Liabilities, (“ASU 2013-04”). ASU 2013-04 provides
guidance for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of obligations resulting from joint and several
liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation is fixed at the reporting date. ASU 201304 will be effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning December 1, 2014 and subsequent interim
periods. The adoption of ASU 2013-04 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
In June 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-08, Investment Companies, (“ASU 2013-08). ASU 2013-08
amends the criteria for an entity to qualify as an investment company under ASC 946. While ASU 2013-08
is not expected to significantly change which entities qualify for the specialized investment company
accounting in ASC 946, it (1) introduces new disclosure requirements that apply to all investment companies
and (2) amends the measurement criteria for certain interests in other investment companies. ASU 2013-08
also amends the requirements in ASC 810 related to qualifying for the “investment company deferral” in
ASU 2010-10 as well as the requirements in ASC 820 related to qualifying for the “net asset value practical
expedient” in ASU 2009-12. ASU 2013-08 was effective for the Company’s second fiscal quarter beginning
March 1, 2014. The adoption of ASU 2013-08 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.
In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists, (“ASU 2013-11”).
ASU 2013-13 is intended to end inconsistent practices regarding the presentation of an unrecognized tax
benefits when a net operating loss ("NOL"), a similar tax loss or a tax credit carryforward is available to
reduce the taxable income or tax payable that would result from the disallowance of a tax position. ASU
2013-11 will be effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning December 1, 2014 and subsequent interim
periods. The adoption of ASU 2013-11 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In connection with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Company evaluated
subsequent events occurring after the balance sheet date of May 31, 2014 through July 15, 2014, the date the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, and concluded that no events, other than those
described below, have occurred that required recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial
statements.
On June 25, 2014, $21.0 million was distributed by the two FDIC LLCs, of which $12.7 million was paid to
the FDIC and $8.3 million was paid to the Company. From inception to date, $165.9 million has been
distributed by the LLCs, of which $100.7 million has been paid to the FDIC and $65.2 million has been paid
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to the Company.
During June 2014, Fund I distributed $25.0 million to its investors (including $2.7 million to the Company).
From inception to date, Fund I has distributed $525.5 million to its investors (including $57.3 million to the
Company).
During June 2014, Fund II distributed $20.0 million to its investors (including $1.6 million to the Company).
From inception to date, Fund II has distributed $65.0 million to its investors (including $5.1 million to the
Company).
During June 2014, the Mezzanine Fund called $26.0 million of equity commitments of which the Company
was responsible for $5.7 million. A total of $0.8 million in distributions was made to the Mezzanine Fund’s
investors (including $0.2 million to the Company). Additionally, during July 2014, the Mezzanine Fund
closed on additional equity commitments of $18.1 million from both new and existing investors, bringing
the total equity commitments to $143.1 million, with no additional increase in the Company’s commitments
with $3.8 million remaining to be called. During July 2014, the Company called $15.6 million of which the
Company was responsible for $2.9 million.
During June 2014, the CMBS Fund distributed $6.1 million to its investors (including $2.9 million to the
Company). From inception to date, the CMBS Fund has distributed $15.2 million to its investors (including
$8.8 million to the Company).
During July 2014, the Company executed a credit line increase on one of the warehouse repurchase facilities
from $250 million to $400 million.
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Item 2.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our unaudited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included under
Item 1 of this Report and our audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in
our Annual Report for our fiscal year ended November 30, 2013.
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
Some of the statements in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report, are “forward-looking statements,” as that term is defined
in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements include
statements regarding our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, strategies and
prospects. You can identify forward-looking statements by the fact that these statements do not relate strictly
to historical or current matters. Rather, forward-looking statements relate to anticipated or expected events,
activities, trends or results. Because forward-looking statements relate to matters that have not yet occurred,
these statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties. Many factors could cause our actual
activities or results to differ materially from the activities and results anticipated in forward-looking
statements. These factors include those described under the caption “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of our Annual
Report for our fiscal year ended November 30, 2013. We do not undertake any obligation to update forwardlooking statements, except as required by Federal securities laws.
Outlook
During the second quarter of 2014, we continued our focus on raising investment capital from third party
investors and have been able to produce profits by investing this third-party capital in real estate related
assets. Focusing on managing real estate related investments more predominantly for third parties shifts the
principal sources of our earnings from loan interest and net gains on sales of foreclosed real estate (“REO”)
resulting from direct investments towards a co-investments and investment management, asset management,
and other servicing fees oriented business. We expect this focus to carry into the future. In addition, we have
also supplemented our earnings with our Rialto Mortgage Finance business (“RMF”) by originating and
securitizing fixed rate commercial first mortgage loans, earning profits by selling the loans to securitization
trusts for more than what we invest in them. In our Direct Investment business line, the limited liability
companies in which we have invested along with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) have
continued to distribute capital in 2014. However, revenues and earnings from our direct investment in the
FDIC LLCs and portfolios of mortgage loans we acquired from banks in 2011 will continue to decrease as
the assets underlying these investments wind down.
Looking past 2014, we also expect our newly acquired hospital operation to see increased revenues and
expenses as we work towards making it profitable. We also expect to grow our management fees and begin
receiving performance based incentive fees (“carried interest”) as the investments in our real estate funds are
monetized in the future. We typically earn carried interest in the investment vehicles we sponsor when
distributions in those vehicles exceed the amount the investors contributed plus specified threshold returns
on the investors’ capital. For the funds we have in place today, we estimate that carried interest would be
distributed starting approximately six years after those vehicles begin investing. As we increase the number
of our investment funds and our investment funds age, if we continue to be successful, we anticipate an
increasing portion of our revenues to be generated by carried interests.
If Fund I had ceased operations and liquidated all its investments for their estimated fair values on May 31,
2014, we would have received $103.6 million with regard to our carried interest for that fund. However,
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Fund I did not cease operations and liquidate its investments on May 31, 2014, and the actual sum we
receive with regard to our carried interest in Fund I may be substantially higher or lower than $103.6
million. No amount has been accrued in our consolidated statement of operations with regard to our carried
interest in Fund I or any other fund, although we did collect carried interest with respect to our PublicPrivate Investment Program fund (“PPIP Fund”) which was substantially realized in 2012. See Note 2, Basis
of Presentation in the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for more information about
how we record revenues attributable to Carried Interest.
With a number of institutions no longer in the real estate lending business, and those remaining facing
stricter underwriting standards and new government-imposed regulations, we anticipate a large scale
opportunity to originate commercial first mortgage loans as a significant component of the existing
commercial real estate loan universe matures and must be refinanced. In addition, many financial institutions
remain burdened by exposure to overleveraged real estate assets and must further deleverage their balance
sheets before they can significantly increase new originations. Lenders have utilized distressed asset sales to
rid themselves of these non- and sub-performing assets and have employed more conservative underwriting
standards for new loans as they attempt to transition away from riskier assets. In addition, these lenders have
been limited by regulators as to how much they can lend at a time when borrowers are searching for
additional proceeds to refinance their upcoming maturities. As a result, we believe there is a growing
opportunity for us to grow our senior lending business as well as our mezzanine lending and equity investing
businesses.
Throughout the last financial disruption, lending institutions benefitted from extensive accommodations
from bank regulators, enabling loan restructuring practices that delayed a large portion of the necessary asset
clearing and refinancing. Recent regulatory attention (e.g., Basel III and the U.S. Dodd Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act, including the so-called “Volcker Rule”) has motivated many financial
institutions more recently to implement more stringent bank capital standards, which we believe should
create more of these opportunities for companies like ours.
Overview
We are a leading commercial real estate investment, investment management, and finance company focused
on raising, investing and managing third party capital, originating and securitizing commercial mortgage
loans, as well as investing our own capital through our investment vehicles in real estate related mortgage
loans, properties and related securities. We have a vertically-integrated operating platform consisting of
approximately 400 professionals located in ten offices across the U.S. We were founded in 2007 and are a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Lennar Corporation (“Lennar” or “Parent”), one of the largest homebuilders in
the U.S. At May 31, 2014, Lennar had $449.2 million of capital invested in our business to support our
growth.
We apply a comprehensive risk management approach across our business lines, which is rooted in our
management’s deep understanding of fundamental real estate values and proven ability to manage these
complementary business lines through multiple economic and credit cycles. To date, many of our investment
and management opportunities have arisen from the dislocation in the U.S. real estate markets from 2007 to
2010 and the efforts to restructure and recapitalize those markets. Going forward, we believe that we are
well-positioned to capitalize on the opportunities arising from the diminished supply of commercial real
estate capital and the substantial demand for new financings in the commercial real estate sector. We believe
our experienced management team of industry veterans supplemented by Lennar’s knowledge of regional
and local real estate conditions in many parts of the country, will allow us to continue to grow our business
prudently as we endeavor to capitalize on opportunities in the real estate investment and finance markets.
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Results of Operations
Financial information relating to our operations for the three and six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013,
was as follows:
Three Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

REVENUE:
Interest income
REO revenue:
Hospital revenues, net
Rental income
Gains from securitizations and other loan origination revenues
Management fees

Six Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

$ 24,008

$ 19,129

$ 42,471

$ 38,437

5,480
4,188
22,479
7,906

5,439
6,555

9,794
10,052
35,307
23,570

9,981
12,869

64,061

31,123

121,194

61,287

25,451

14,289

49,805

26,862

4,208
2,243
33,866
8,961
5,043
5,073
685
525

(1,207)
3,521
715
8,155
1,331
294

10,883
6,975
40,582
15,371
11,303
7,807
1,266
1,046

2,008
10,610
2,031
17,642
2,473
458

86,055

27,098

145,038

62,084

17,939

4,505

23,293

10,678

378

-

378

-

(3,677)

8,530

(173)

9,881

LESS: NET (LOSS) EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

(17,056)

5,690

(16,121)

5,361

NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO RIALTO BEFORE
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

13,379

2,840

15,948

4,520

5,187

1,479

6,175

2,147

Total revenue
EXPENSES:
General and administrative expense
REO expense, net:
Hospital expense, net
Other REO expense (income), net
Provision for loan losses
Interest expense
Servicing expense
Securitization and loan origination expenses
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Depreciation expense
Total expenses
EQUITY IN EARNINGS FROM UNCONSOLIDATED
ENTITIES
GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES
NET EARNINGS (INCLUDING NET EARNINGS (LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS)

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO RIALTO

$
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8,192

$

1,361

$

9,773

$

2,373

Three Months Ended May 31, 2014 versus Three Months Ended May 31, 2013
In the second quarter of 2014, net earnings before provision for income taxes was $13.4 million (which is
comprised of a $3.7 million operating loss and an add back of $17.1 million of net loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests), compared to net earnings before provision for income taxes of $2.8 million (which
included $8.5 million of net earnings offset by $5.7 million of net earnings attributable to noncontrolling
interests) in the same period last year. In the second quarter of 2014, revenues were $64.1 million, which
consisted primarily of gains from securitizations and other revenue from our RMF business of $22.5 million,
interest income primarily associated with our portfolio of real estate loans of $24.0 million, fees for
managing and servicing assets of $7.9 million, rental income of $4.2 million and hospital revenues of $5.5
million, compared to revenues of $31.1 million in the same period last year, which consisted primarily of
interest income associated with our portfolio of real estate loans of $19.1 million, fees for managing and
servicing assets of $6.6 million and rental income of $5.4 million. Revenues increased primarily due to the
new streams of revenue from our RMF business as well as revenue from the hospital acquisition that
occurred during November 2013, increase in interest income associated with the portfolio of loans we own
and fees for managing and servicing assets..
In the second quarter of 2014, expenses were $86.1 million, which consisted primarily of costs related to our
RMF business, loan portfolio operations, hospital expenses, provision for loan losses of $33.9 million
primarily associated with the business line’s FDIC Portfolios (before noncontrolling interests) and other
general and administrative expenses. Included in expenses is our REO operations of $2.2 million, which
consisted primarily of expenses related to owning and maintaining REO of $8.2 million, net REO
impairments of $1.2 million and unrealized losses on loan foreclosure of $7.0 million, partially offset by
realized gains on the sale of REO of $14.2 million. This compares with expenses of $27.1 million in the
same period last year, which consisted primarily of costs related to our portfolio operations, provision for
loan losses of $3.5 million primarily associated with the FDIC Portfolios (before noncontrolling interests),
and other general and administrative expenses. That included income of our REO operations of $1.2 million,
which consisted primarily of expenses related to owning and maintaining REO of $10.3 million, REO
impairments of $3.8 million and unrealized losses on loan foreclosure of $3.2 million, partially offset by
realized gains on the sale of REO of $18.5 million. Expenses increased primarily due to an increase in loan
impairments due to changes in the estimated cash flows expected to be collected from the FDIC Portfolios,
increases in securitization expenses, hospital expenses that did not exist in the prior year quarter, general and
administrative expenses related to our RMF business and an increase in interest expense related to the
issuance of the 7.00% Senior Notes and the Structured Notes.
In the second quarter ended May 31, 2014, we had equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities of $17.9
million, which primarily included $7.2 million of our share of earnings from Fund I, $7.8 million of our
share of earnings from the CMBS Fund, $2.4 million of our share of earnings from Fund II and $0.5 million
of our share of earnings from the Mezzanine Fund. Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities was $4.5
million in the same period last year, which included $4.8 million of our share of earnings from Fund I.
In 2013, we formed our RMF business line, which originates and securitizes five, seven and ten year
commercial fixed rate first mortgage loans on stabilized cash flowing properties. Generally those loans are
between $2 and $75 million in size. During the three months ended May 31, 2014, we originated loans with
a total principal balance of $396.6 million and sold $438.5 million of these loans into one separate
securitization trust. As of May 31, 2014, we had an additional $125.7 million in originated loans that were
transferred to receivables, net as they had been sold into a securitization trust but not yet closed as of the
balance sheet date. Additionally, as of May 31, 2014, we had two warehouse repurchase facilities that
mature in 2015 totaling $500 million to use in our RMF business, of which, $44.4 million was outstanding.
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During 2013, the LLCs we own in partnership with the FDIC finished repaying the $627 million of loans
from the FDIC ahead of schedule and thus, were able to start distributing capital back to investors. During
the three months ended May 31, 2014, $45.1 million had been distributed by the LLCs, of which, $27.4
million was paid to the FDIC and $17.7 million was paid to us.
In 2014, the Company created the Rialto Capital CMBS Fund (the “CMBS Fund”). The general purpose of
the CMBS Fund is to acquire, own and/or monetize commercial mortgage-backed securities with at least
some portion of the collateral being originated by our RMF business.
In March 2014, the Company issued an additional $100 million aggregate principal amount, as an add-on to
the 7.00% Senior Notes, at a price of 102.25%, in a private placement. The terms from the add-on offering
have identical terms as the 7.00% Senior Notes. Proceeds from the offering, after payment of expenses, were
approximately $101.7 million. The Company intends to use most of the funds as additional working capital
for its RMF business, in addition to funding contributions to its investment funds or for other general
corporate purposes.
In May 2014, the Company issued $73.8 million principal amount of notes through a securitized structured
note offering (the “Structured Notes”) collaterized by certain assets originally acquired in the Bank
Portfolios transaction at a price of 100%, with an annual coupon rate of 2.85%. Proceeds from the offering,
after payment of expenses and hold backs for cash reserved were $69.1 million. The estimated final payment
date from the Structured Notes is December 15, 2015.
Six Months Ended May 31, 2014 versus Six Months Ended May 31, 2013
In the six months ended May 31, 2014, net earnings before provision for income taxes was $15.9 million
(which is comprised of a $0.2 million operating loss and an add back of $16.1 million of net loss attributable
to noncontrolling interests), compared to net earnings before provision for income taxes of $4.5 million
(which included $9.9 million of net earnings, partially offset by $5.4 million of net earnings attributable to
noncontrolling interests) in the same period last year. In the six months ended May 31, 2014, revenues were
$121.2 million, which consisted primarily of gains from securitizations and other revenue from our RMF
business of $35.5 million, interest income primarily associated with our portfolio of real estate loans of
$42.5 million, fees for managing and servicing assets of $23.6 million, rental income of $10.0 million and
hospital revenues of $9.8 million, compared to revenues of $61.3 million in the same period last year, which
consisted primarily of interest income associated with our portfolio of real estate loans of $38.4 million, fees
for managing and servicing assets of $12.9 million and rental income of $10.0 million. Revenues increased
primarily due to new streams of revenue from our RMF business as well as revenue from the hospital
acquisition that occurred during November 2013, and fees for managing and servicing assets.
In the six months ended May 31, 2014, expenses were $145.0 million, which consisted primarily of costs
related to our RMF business, loan portfolio operations, hospital expenses, provision for loan losses of $40.6
million primarily associated with the business line’s FDIC Portfolios (before noncontrolling interests) and
other general and administrative expenses. Included in expenses is our REO operations of $7.0 million,
which consisted primarily of expenses related to owning and maintaining REO of $20.1 million, net REO
impairments of $3.5 million and unrealized losses on loan foreclosure of $7.1 million, partially offset by
realized gains on the sale of REO of $23.7 million. This compares with expenses of $62.1 million in the
same period last year, which consisted primarily of costs related to our portfolio operations, provision for
loan losses of $10.6 million primarily associated with the business line’s FDIC Portfolios (before
noncontrolling interests), and other general and administrative expenses. Included in expenses is our REO
operations of $2.0 million, which consisted primarily of expenses related to owning and maintaining REO of
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$22.9 million, REO impairments of $4.6 million and unrealized losses on loan foreclosure of $1.7 million,
partially offset by realized gains on the sale of REO of $27.2 million. Expenses increased primarily due to an
increase in loan impairments due to changes in the estimated cash flows expected to be collected from the
FDIC Portfolios, increases in securitization expenses, hospital expenses that did not exist in the prior year,
general and administrative expenses related to our RMF business and an interest expense related to the
issuance of the 7.00% Senior Notes and the Structured Notes.
In the six months ended May 31, 2014, we had equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities of $23.3
million, which primarily included $12.2 million of our share of earnings from Fund I, $7.9 million of our
share of earnings from the CMBS Fund, $2.4 million of our share of earnings from Fund II and $0.8 million
of our share of earnings from the Mezzanine Fund. Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities was
$10.7 million in the same period last year, which included $11.1 million of our share of earnings from Fund
I.
In 2013, we formed our RMF business line, which originates and securitizes five, seven and ten year
commercial fixed rate first mortgage loans on stabilized cash flowing properties. Generally those loans are
between $2 and $75 million in size. During the six months ended May 31, 2014, we originated loans with a
total principal balance of $692.2 million and sold $691.5 million of these loans into three separate
securitization trusts. As of May 31, 2014, we had an additional $125.7 million in originated loans that were
transferred to receivables, net as they had been sold into a securitization trust but had not been settled as of
the balance sheet date. Additionally, as of May 31, 2014, we had two warehouse repurchase facilities that
mature in 2015 totaling $500 million to use in our RMF business, of which, $44.4 million was outstanding.
During 2013, the LLCs we own in partnership with the FDIC finished repaying the $627 million of loans
from the FDIC ahead of schedule and thus, were able to start distributing capital back to investors. During
the six months ended May 31, 2014, $98.2 million had been distributed by the LLCs, of which, $59.6
million was paid to the FDIC and $38.6 million was paid to us. From inception to May 31, 2014, $144.9
million has been distributed by the LLCs, of which $87.9 million was paid to the FDIC and $57.0 million
was paid to us.
In 2014, the Company created the Rialto Capital CMBS Fund. The general purpose of the CMBS Fund is to
acquire, own and/or monetize commercial mortgage-backed securities with at least some portion of the
collateral being originated by our RMF business.
In March 2014, the Company issued an additional $100 million aggregate principal amount, as an add-on to
the 7.00% Senior Notes, at a price of 102.25%, in a private placement. The terms from the add-on offering
have identical terms as the 7.00% Senior Notes. Proceeds from the offering, after payment of expenses, were
approximately $101.7 million. The Company intends to use most of the funds as additional working capital
for its RMF business, in addition to funding contributions to its investment funds or for other general
corporate purposes.
In May 2014, the Company issued $73.8 million principal amount of notes through a securitized structured
note offering (the “Structured Notes”) collaterized by certain assets originally acquired in the Bank
Portfolios transaction at a price of 100%, with an annual coupon rate of 2.85%. Proceeds from the offering,
after payment of expenses and hold backs for cash reserved were $69.1 million. The estimated final payment
date from the Structured Notes is December 15, 2015.
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Business Lines
The Company operates in three business lines, Asset and Investment Management, RMF and Direct
Investments in Real Estate Related Assets. Our business lines are identified based upon how management
operates and manages our activities as well as the types of assets sold and services performed.
Asset and Investment Management
We are the sponsor of and an investor in private funds and other investment vehicles that invest in and
manage real estate related assets. In addition to receiving earnings on our investments, we also earn fees for
our role as an investment manager and general partner of these vehicles and for providing investment
management and other services to those vehicles and other third parties. As discussed in the Overview
Section, these types of revenues are becoming increasingly important to us as we move away from using a
greater portion of our own capital to invest in real estate and real estate related assets as we have done in our
Direct Investments business line. We are instead focusing more on raising capital for investments and then
earning revenue through management and servicing fees, as well as by participating in the ownership as a
co-investor and earning carried interest after distributions to investors have met specified investment return
thresholds. Carried interest on the funds in place today generally will not be received until those funds
mature and a significant portion of the assets are monetized (estimated generally to be approximately six
years after the inception of investing for most of our existing funds).
The following table reflects the Company’s investments in private equity funds that invest in and manage
real estate related assets and other investments (in thousands):

Inception
Year

Rialto Real Estate Fund I, LP
Rialto Real Estate Fund II, LP
Rialto Mezzanine Partners Fund
Rialto Capital CMBS Fund, LP
Other Investments

Equity
Commitments

2010 $ 700,006
2012
1,305,000
2013
125,000
2014
20,020

Equity
Commitments
Called

Commitment to
fund by the
Company

May 31, 2014
Funds
contributed by
the Company

$

$

$

700,006
660,058
81,701
20,020

75,000
100,000
27,299
12,164

75,000
50,579
17,843
12,164

May 31, 2014

$

November 30, 2013

Investment

$

73,188
52,020
17,719
14,063
703
157,693

$

75,729
53,103
16,724
9,017
154,573

$

The Company’s share of earnings (loss) from unconsolidated entities was as follows (in thousands):
Three Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

Rialto Real Estate Fund I, LP
Rialto Real Estate Fund II, LP
Rialto Mezzanine Partners Fund
Rialto Capital CMBS Fund, LP
Other Investments

$ 7,174
2,402
493
7,855
15
$ 17,939
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$ 4,769
(454)
190
$ 4,505

Six Months Ended
May 31,
2014
2013

$ 12,233
2,440
782
7,859
(21)
$ 23,293

$ 11,142
(454)
(10)
$ 10,678

Fund I — If Fund I had ceased operations and liquidated all its investments at their estimated fair values on
May 31, 2014, we would have received $103.6 million with regard to our carried interest. However, Fund I
did not cease operations and liquidate its investments on May 31, 2014, and the ultimate sum we will receive
with regard to our carried interest in Fund I may be substantially higher or lower than $103.6 million. No
amount has been recorded in our consolidated statement of operations with regard to our carried interest in
Fund I, although we did collect carried interest with respect to our PPIP Fund which was substantially
realized in 2012. See Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the notes to the unaudited
consolidated financial statements for more information on how we record revenues attributable to carried
interests.
Managed Account — In 2013, we began managing a $200 million separate account for an insurance
company that is investing in mezzanine loans that typically have lower loan to underlying collateral values.
CMBS Fund — In 2014, we created the CMBS Fund. The general purpose of the CMBS Fund is to acquire,
own and/or monetize commercial mortgage-backed securities with at least some portion of the collateral
being originated by our RMF business.
In addition to receiving distributions and carried interests with regard to funds we manage, we receive
management fees from those funds, from the account we are managing for an insurance company and from
the two LLCs we own in partnership with the FDIC. These fees are reflected in our consolidated statement
of operations under the caption Management Fees, except that, because the revenues and expenses of the two
FDIC LLCs are included in our consolidated financial statements, the management fees we receive from
them are eliminated in consolidation (and instead reduce the minority interest in our net income). During the
three months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013, we received management fees that were reflected in our
statements of operations totaling $7.9 million and $6.6 million. During those periods, we received
management fees from the two FDIC LLCs totaling $2.1 million and $2.9 million, respectively. During the
six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013, we received management fees that were reflected in our
statements of operations totaling $23.6 million and $12.9 million. During those periods, we received
management fees from the two FDIC LLCs totaling $4.2 million and $5.8 million, respectively. The
management fees reflected on our statements of operations increased because of additional fund assets that
were under management. The management fees from the two FDIC LLCs declined because of loan
repayments, resolutions and other transactions that reduced the amount of LLC assets being managed.
RMF
During 2013, we created our RMF business to originate and securitize 5, 7 and 10 year fixed rate
commercial first mortgage loans, generally with principal amounts between $2 million and $75 million,
which are secured by income producing properties. As of November 30, 2013, we had secured two
warehouse repurchase facilities, with total borrowing capacity of $500 million, for loan originations, and we
are continuing to work to increase our warehouse line capacity with a number of other sources.
Our goal has been to securitize loans through third party issuers at least quarterly, thus keeping them on our
balance sheet for a relatively short period of time. During the six months ended May 31, 2014, we originated
loans with a total principal balance of $692.2 million and sold and closed $691.5 million of originated loans
into three separate securitization trusts. An additional $125.7 million of originated loans were sold into a
securitization trust but not yet closed as of May 31, 2014, and thus, the sale price of these loans was included
in Receivables, net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
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Direct Investments in Real Estate Related Assets
We began making Direct Investments in Real Estate Related Assets in 2010, when the economy and housing
sector were still performing poorly and had not yet started to recover. Because of this, we were able to
purchase loan portfolios and real estate related assets at significant discounts. However, investing in assets
of this type requires a concentrated use of our capital, and therefore, beginning in 2011, we began to focus
more on raising third party capital to invest with us side-by-side and where we could utilize our expertise to
increase our returns through the collection of fees and carried interest.
FDIC Portfolios — In February 2010, we acquired 40% managing member equity interests in two limited
liability companies (“LLCs”) that had been formed by the LLC to hold performing and non-performing
loans formerly owned by 22 failed financial institutions. The FDIC retained 60% equity interests in the
LLCs and provided $626.9 million of financing with 0% interest, which was non-recourse to us and to the
LLCs. When we acquired our interests in the two LLCs, their portfolios consisted of approximately 5,500
distressed residential and commercial real estate loans. The financing from the FDIC has been repaid and the
two LLCs are now making distributions to members, of which we receive 40%.
Bank Portfolios — In September 2010, we acquired from three financial institutions portfolios consisting of
a total of approximately 400 distressed commercial and residential mortgage loans and over 300 properties
that had been obtained through foreclosures of loans. We paid $310 million for the distressed real estate and
real estate related assets of which $124 million was financed through a 5-year senior unsecured loan
provided by one of the selling institutions. Our hospital investment, discussed below, was acquired in a
workout on a loan from one of these portfolios.
In November 2013, in settlement of a loan acquired as part of Bank Portfolios, we acquired the real estate
and operating entity of a hospital (the “Hospital”). This transaction was the result of a Chapter 11
reorganization plan approved on November 7, 2013. The reorganization plan required us to make a $10
million cash investment that will be used to improve the hospital and emergency room facilities, provide for
working capital requirements and begin to repay secured and unsecured court approved claims per the
reorganization plan. The Hospital guaranteed the payment of bankruptcy administrative claims of
approximately $17.5 million owed to three groups of secured and unsecured creditors. In return, we acquired
100% of the Hospital operating entity effective November 8, 2013. The Hospital is included in our
consolidated financial statements as of May 31, 2014, and its operating results are included in our
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the three and six months ended May 31, 2014.
The Company has contracted a third party hospital operating company (the “Third Party Operator”) to
operate and manage the hospital at a discount from their normal management fee in return for gradually
acquiring an equity participation in the hospital operating company. Additionally, the confirmed
reorganization plan exchanges a 20% equity interest in the entity that owns the Hospital’s land and building
for the administrative bankruptcy claims of several doctors who were original shareholders of the now
defunct hospital. The distribution of this noncontrolling interest to these doctors was conditioned and subject
to the validation of the administrative claims presented by them during bankruptcy. Furthermore after
validation of the claims, any and all distributions will be in compliance with all State and Federal healthcare
regulatory requirements. As of May 31, 2014, Rialto’s healthcare attorney has not concluded the exact
amount of the claims that will be allowed, therefore; the noncontrolling interest has not been distributed.
Rialto has the right to withhold the distribution of this noncontrolling interest until all such requirements are
satisfied.
Starting in 2014, the three secured creditor groups will receive payments totaling 75% of the Hospital’s net
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income plus the discount on the fees to the hospital management company towards their claims, some of
which bear interest of 0% to 5%. In addition, all excess cash flows beyond the scheduled payments to
secured creditors must be used to accelerate payment in full of these claims. Neither we nor the hospital
management company will receive any distribution from operations other than the reduced management fee
until all three groups of secured creditors have been paid in full, which management of the hospital believes
can occur within 2 to 3 years.
CMBS Investment — In 2010, we purchased approximately $43 million face amount of non-investment
grade CMBS for $19.4 million, representing a 55% discount from par value.
Other — In January 2014, we acquired 100% of the loan servicing business segment of a real estate services
company in exchange for the approximately 5% investment we owned in that company as of November 30,
2013. This acquired operation had previously provided loan servicing support for our owned and managed
portfolios, as well as asset management services for our small balance loan workout program. As of
November 30, 2013, the carrying value of our investment in the Service Provider was $8.3 million.
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Selected Business Line Financial and Operational Data
Business line financial and operational data does not include an allocated portion of the Company’s general
and administrative expense at the corporate level of $23.8 million as well as interest and other expenses of
$8.1 million for the three months ended May 31, 2014. Not included in business line financial and
operational data for the three months ended May 31, 2013, is general and administrative expense at the
corporate level of $13.2 million as well as interest expense and other expenses of $0.3 million. Not included
in business line financial and operational date for the six months ended May 31, 2014, is general and
administrative expense at the corporate level of $45.9 million as well as interest expense and other expense
of $14.3 million. Not included in business line financial and operational date for the six months ended May
31, 2013, is general and administrative expense at the corporate level of $24.7 million as well as interest
expense and other expense of $0.5 million.
Asset and Investment Management
Overview
($ in thousands)
May 31,
2014
Total Assets

$

157,741

As of
November 30,
2013
$

145,701
Six Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

Three Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013
Revenue
Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities
Gain on sale of investment securities
Net Earnings Before Income Taxes

$

10,144
17,925
378
28,447

$

6,752
4,316
11,068

$

27,623
23,315
378
51,316

$

13,066
10,623
23,689

Three Months Ended May 31, 2014 versus Three Months Ended May 31, 2013
Revenue increased 50% quarter over quarter in our Asset and Investment Management business line mainly
due to an increase in management fees due to only managing Fund I and Fund II in the second quarter of
2013 compared to managing Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund in the second quarter
of 2014. This was also aided by our acquisition of the Service Provider in 2014 which contributed additional
revenue that did not exist in the second quarter of 2013. Net earnings before income taxes increased mostly
due to the increase in revenue.
Six Months Ended May 31, 2014 versus Six Months Ended May 31, 2013
Revenues increased 111% year over year in our Asset and Investment Management business line mainly due
to an increase in management fees due to only managing Fund I and Fund II in the six months ended May
31, 2013, compared to managing Fund I, Fund II, the Mezzanine Fund and the CMBS Fund in the six
months ended May 31, 2014. This was also aided by our acquisition of the Service Provider in 2014 which
contributed additional revenue that did not exist in the six months ended May 31, 2013. Net earnings before
income taxes increased mostly due to the increase in revenue.
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RMF
Overview
($ in thousands)
May 31,
2014
Total Assets

$

216,511

As of
November 30,
2013
$

269,577
Six Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

Three Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013
Revenue
Net Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes

$

25,819
12,482

$
$

(1,066)

$

40,718
15,630

$
$

(1,066)

Three Months Ended May 31, 2014 versus Three Months Ended May 31, 2013
Our RMF business began operations in the second quarter of 2013 and although not operational, it incurred
general and administrative expenses. RMF had revenues of $25.8 million in the second quarter of 2014 due
mostly to gains from one securitization as well as interest income on the originated loans. Revenue was
partially offset by costs of the one securitization and general and administrative expenses to arrive at net
earnings before income taxes of $12.4 million.
Six Months Ended May 31, 2014 versus Six Months Ended May 31, 2013
Our RMF business began operations in the second quarter of 2013 and although not operational, it incurred
general and administrative expenses. RMF had revenues of $40.7 million in the six months ended May 31,
2013, mostly to gains from three securitizations as well as interest income on the originated loans. Revenue
was partially offset by costs of the three securitizations and general and administrative expenses to arrive at
net earnings before income taxes of $15.6 million.
Direct Investments in Real Estate Related Assets
Overview
($ in thousands)
May 31,
2014
Total Assets

$

878,011

As of
November 30,
2013
$

1,010,385
Six Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

Three Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013
Revenue
Net (Loss) Earnings Before Income Taxes

$

30,249
(1,633)

- 53 -

$

24,371
5,304

$

56,453
(3,246)

$

48,221
6,033

Three Months Ended May 31, 2014 versus Three Months Ended May 31, 2013
Revenue increased 24% quarter over quarter in our Direct Investments in Real Estate Related Assets
business line due mostly to the operations of the hospital that was acquired at the end of 2013. This was
aided by an increase in interest income, slightly offset by a decrease in our rental income from REO. Net
(loss) earnings before income taxes decreased due to an increase in expenses related to the hospital, loan
impairments due to changes in the estimated cash flows expected to be collected on the FDIC Portfolios and
REO expenses also increased quarter over quarter, however, these increases in expenses were slightly offset
by a decrease in interest expense.
Six Months Ended May 31, 2014 versus Six Months Ended May 31, 2013
Revenue increased 17% year over year in our Direct Investments in Real Estate Related Assets business line
due mostly to the operations of the hospital that was acquired at the end of 2013. This was aided by an
increase in interest income, slightly offset by a decrease in our rental income from REO. Net (loss) earnings
before income taxes decreased due to an increase in expenses related to the hospital, loan impairments due to
changes in the estimated cash flows expected to be collected on the FDIC Portfolios and REO expenses also
increased year over year, however, these increases in expenses were slightly offset by a decrease in general
and administrative expenses and interest expense.
Below is a summary of the business lines’ financial results to arrive at the Company’s consolidated financial
results (in thousands):
As of and for the Three Months Ended May 31, 2014
Asset and
Loan
Investment Origination &
Direct
Management Securitization Investments Corporate Eliminations

Total Assets
Revenue
Gain on sale of investment securities
Net Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes

$

157,741
10,144
378
28,447

$

216,511
25,819
12,482

$

878,011
30,249
(1,632)

$

913,382
(25,918)

$ (692,229)
(2,151)
-

Total
Consolidated

$ 1,473,416
64,061
378
13,379

As of November 30, 2013 and for the Three Months Ended May 31, 2013
Asset and
Loan
Total
Direct
Investment Origination &
Management Securitization Investments Corporate Eliminations Consolidated

Total Assets
Revenue
Net Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes

$

145,701
6,752
11,069

$

269,577
(1,066)

$ 1,010,385
24,371
5,304

$

53,650
(12,467)

$

-

As of and for the Six Months Ended May 31, 2014
Asset and
Loan
Investment Origination &
Direct
Management Securitization Investments Corporate Eliminations

Total Assets
Revenue
Gain on sale of investment securities
Net Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes

$

157,741
27,623
378
51,316

$

216,511
40,718
15,630
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$

878,011
56,453
(3,246)

$

913,382
(47,752)

$ (692,229)
(3,600)
-

$ 1,479,313
31,123
2,840

Total
Consolidated

$ 1,473,416
121,194
378
15,948

As of November 30, 2013 and for the Six Months Ended May 31, 2013
Asset and
Loan
Total
Direct
Investment Origination &
Management Securitization Investments Corporate Eliminations Consolidated

Total Assets
Revenue
Net Earnings (Loss) Before Income Taxes

$

145,701
13,066
23,689

$

269,577
(1,066)

$ 1,010,385
48,221
6,033

$

53,650
(24,136)

$

-

$ 1,479,313
61,287
4,520

Financial Condition and Capital Resources
Liquidity – May 31, 2014
At May 31, 2014, we had approximately $244.7 million in cash.
Our notes payable and other debts payable consisted of the following at May 31, 2014 and November 30,
2013 (in thousands):
May 31,
2014

Senior Notes
Bank Portfolios
Structured Notes
Warehouse Repurchase Facilities
Notes payable - other
Total Notes payable and other debts payable

$

$

352,148
90,933
73,830
44,424
16,581
577,916

November 30,
2013

$

$

250,000
90,933
76,017
24,933
441,883

In May 2014, the Company issued $73.8 million principal amount of notes through a securitized structured
note offering (the “Structured Notes”) collaterized by certain assets originally acquired in the Bank
Portfolios transaction at a price of 100%, with an annual coupon rate of 2.85%. Proceeds from the offering,
after payment of expenses and hold backs for cash reserved were $69.1 million. The estimated final payment
date from the Structured Notes is December 15, 2015.
The Bank Portfolios’ notes payable have an interest rate of the higher of 4.5% or 1 month LIBOR plus
3.75%. The warehouse repurchase facilities’ interest rate is the higher of 2.5% or 1 month LIBOR plus
2.25%. The 7.00% Senior Notes bear interest at 7%. Other notes payable have interest rates ranging from
0.0% to 6.9%.
In January 2014, the Company extended the maturity date of the Bank Portfolio’s note payable from
September 30, 2013 to September 30, 2016. Additionally, in February 2014, the Company rescheduled the
three remaining principal payments of $30.3 million to be due on December 15, 2014, 2015 and 2016.
The first $250 million warehouse loan facility originated during 2013 has a maturity date of August 9, 2015
with an option for a one time, one year extension. The second $250 million warehouse loan facility
originated during 2013 has a maturity date of October 8, 2015 with an option for a one time, one year
extension. These facilities are in the form of two separate repurchase agreement lines, and each of them is
secured by the loans that are funded with it. The borrowings are repaid with proceeds from the sales of loans
into securitizations. The interest rate on both the facilities is at one month LIBOR plus 2.25% (with one
subject to a one month LIBOR floor of 0.25%) and is calculated on the principal amount that is outstanding
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from time to time. Interest on the 7.00% Senior Notes is due semi-annually beginning June 1, 2014.
Prior to our issuance of the 7.00% Senior Notes, our Asset and Investment Management business line and
our Direct Investments business line were funded largely by Lennar. Our RMF business is funded by our
two warehouse repurchase facilities and the proceeds of the sale of the 7.00% Senior Notes in excess of the
$100 million that was paid to Lennar. As a result of the 7.00% Senior Notes offering, we have become
substantially self-sustaining, and we will request funding from Lennar only to the extent, if any, it is required
to supplement our own resources (which Lennar has no obligation to provide, aside from up to $75 million
we can borrow under a Revolving Credit Agreement Lennar entered into in 2013). During 2013, we repaid
$235 million that Lennar had provided to us (including the $100 million repaid with proceeds of the sale of
the 7.00% Senior Notes).
During June 2014, the Company obtained credit approval to increase the commitment on one of the
warehouse facility repurchase agreements from $250 million to $400 million.
During May 2014, we used our excess cash to dividend $100 million to Lennar. The remaining capital
Lennar had invested in us, which all is in the form of equity, was $449.2 million as of May 31, 2014. As we
receive proceeds of the winding down of the FDIC LLCs and our Bank Portfolios, we expect to return at
least a portion of Lennar’s remaining investment.
In March 2014, we issued an additional $100 million aggregate principal amount, as an add-on to the 7.00%
Senior Notes, at a price of 102.25%, in a private placement. The terms from the add-on offering have
identical terms as the 7.00% Senior Notes. Proceeds from the offering, after payment of expenses, were
approximately $101.7 million. The Company intends to use most of the funds to provide additional working
capital to its RMF business, in addition to funding contributions to its investment funds or for other general
corporate purposes.
During 2013, Lennar entered into a Revolving Credit Agreement with us under which, subject to customary
lending conditions, Lennar will at any time make advances to us on a revolving basis up to a maximum of
$75 million. The revolving facility will terminate in November 2015. Borrowings bear interest at LIBOR
plus 3.5%. At May 31, 2014, no amounts had been borrowed or repaid under this agreement.
Cash Flows
Cash provided by (used in) our operating, investing and financing activities is summarized as follows:
May 31,
2014

($ in thousands)

Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash

$

$

(58,247)
123,102
(21,676)
43,179

May 31,
2013
$

$

(28,778)
315,601
(300,502)
(13,679)

Operating Cash Flow Activities
During the six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013, cash used in operating activities totaled $58.2 million
and $28.8 million, respectively, representing an increase of 102% year over year. Cash used in operating
activities was impacted largely by our new RMF business that used cash for loan originations of $692.2
million partially offset by the sale of a portion of those loan originations into three separate securitization
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trusts for a cash inflow of $572.1 million net of the amount or originated loans transferred to Receivables,
net. There was a decrease in due to Parent of $2.8 million, an increase in accruals and other liabilities of
$13.7 million and an increase in other assets of $15.5 million. Additionally, there was $23.3 million in
equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities and $12.3 million in deferred income taxes. These cash uses
were offset by $111.8 million of loans settled during the six months and net earnings attributable to Rialto of
$9.8 million. Included in net earnings attributable to Rialto were non-cash items such as realized gains on
the sale of REO of $23.7 million.
During the six months ended May 31, 2013, cash used in operating activities totaled $28.8 million. These
cash uses were slightly offset by net earnings attributable to Rialto of $2.4 million. Included in net earnings
attributable to Rialto were non-cash items such as realized gains on the sale of REO of $27.2 million
Investing Cash Flow Activities
During the six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013, cash provided by investing activities was $123.1
million and $315.6 million, respectively, representing a 61% decrease quarter over quarter. Cash provided
by investing consisted of receipts of principal payments on our loans receivable, net of $8.4 million,
proceeds from the sale of REO of $112.4 million and return of capital from unconsolidated entities of $32.7
million. This was slightly offset by a $20.8 million contribution to our investments in unconsolidated entities
and other uses of cash of $9.5 million.
During the six months ended May 31, 2013, cash provided by investing activities totaled $315.6 million.
Cash provided by investing consisted of receipts of principal payments on our loans receivable, net of $34.3
million, proceeds from the sale of REO of $104.5 million, return of capital from unconsolidated entities of
$37.1 million and a decrease in our defeasance cash of $185.9 million due to the paydown of the FDIC
Notes. This was slightly offset by a $33.6 million contribution to our investments in unconsolidated entities
and other uses of cash of $12.5 million.
Financing Cash Flow Activities
During the six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013, cash used in financing activities was $21.7 million
and $300.5 million, respectively, representing a 93% improvement quarter over quarter. Cash used in
financing consisted of the paydown of the Notes payable of $5.9 million, distributions to the FDIC of $59.6
million, distribution of $100 million to Lennar and net payments under the warehouse repurchase facilities
of $31.6 million. This was slightly offset by proceeds $104.5 million from the 7.00% Senior Notes and
proceeds from the Structured Notes of $73.8 million. Other cash used in financing amounted to $2.9 million.
During the six months ended May 31, 2013, cash used in financing activities totaled $300.5 million. Cash
used in financing consisted of the paydown of the FDIC Notes of $314.6 million. This was offset by an
increase in due to Parent of $14.1 million due to cash funding provided by Lennar.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Investments in Unconsolidated Entities
Financial information on a consolidated 100% basis regarding unconsolidated entities in which we have
investments that are accounted for by the equity method was as follows as of May 31, 2014 and November
30, 2013, and for the three and six months ended May 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):
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Balance Sheets

May 31,
2014

November 30,
2013

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans receivable
Real estate owned
Investment securities
Investments in partnerships
Other assets

$

262,145
561,167
318,846
455,634
224,605
37,231
1,859,628

$

$

$

332,968
523,249
285,565
381,555
149,350
191,624
1,864,311

Liabilities and equity:

Accounts payable and other liabilities
Notes payable
Partner loans
Equity

$

34,141
344,138
1,481,349
1,859,628

$
Statements of Operations

$

108,514
398,445
163,940
1,193,412
1,864,311

Three Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

Revenues
Costs and expenses
Other income - net (1)
Net earnings of unconsolidated entities
Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities
(1)

$

$

33,177
23,304
104,868
114,741
17,939

$
$

$

$
$

65,956
65,595
38,786
39,147
4,505

Six Months Ended
May 31,
May 31,
2014
2013

$

$
$

64,604
49,413
153,038
168,229
23,293

$

119,299
124,709
94,787
89,377
10,678

$
$

Other income – net for the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, includes Fund I, Fund II and CMBS
Fund’s realized and unrealized gains on investments as well as other income from REO. Other income, net
for the three and six months ended May 31, 2013, includes Fund I and Fund II’s realized and unrealized
gains on investments as well as the PPIP Fund’s mark-to-market unrealized gains and losses, of which the
Company’s portion was a small percentage.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
The following table summarizes certain of our contractual obligations at May 31, 2014:

Total

Notes payable and other debts payable (1)
Warehouse repurchase facilities (2)
Interest commitments under interest bearing debt (3)
Investment commitments (4)
RMF rate lock commitment (5)
Operating leases
Total contractual obligations

$

$

533,492
44,424
118,300
58,877
34,875
8,637
798,605
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Less than
1 year

$

4,235
44,424
14,885
58,877
34,875
877
$ 158,173

Payments Due by Period
1 to 3
3 to 5
years
years

$ 144,666
54,207
3,918
$ 202,791

$ 384,543
49,186
3,842
$ 437,571

More than
5 years

$

$

48
22
70

(1)

Amount includes $73.8 million related to notes issued through a securitized structured note offering with
an assumed final payment date of December 15, 2015.
(2)
Warehouse facilities are assumed to be paid off in the short term as soon as loans held-for-sale are
securitized, which is normally within 2 to 3 months.
(3)
Interest commitments on variable interest bearing debt are determined based on the interest rate as of May
31, 2014.
(4)
Amount includes the Company’s capital commitments to Fund II and the Mezzanine Fund.
(5)
Relates to two loans the Company is contractually obligated to fund but has yet to release the funds to the
borrower.
New Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 16 of our consolidated financial statements included under Item 1 of this Report for a discussion of
new accounting pronouncements applicable to our Company.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
We believe that there have been no significant changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates
during the three and six months ended May 31, 2014, as compared to those we disclosed in Managements’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in our Annual Report for
the year ended November 30, 2013 other than those disclosed below:
Goodwill – Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets
acquired. Evaluating goodwill for impairment involves the determination of the fair value of our reporting
unit in which we have recorded goodwill. A reporting unit is a component of a business line for which
discrete financial information is available. Inherent in the determination of fair value of our reporting unit is
certain estimates and judgments, including the interpretation of current economic indicators and market
valuations as well as our strategic plans with regard to our operations. To the extent additional information
arises or our strategies change, it is possible that our conclusion regarding goodwill impairment could
change, which could have a material effect on our financial position and results of operations.
The Company recorded goodwill in connection with an acquisition during the first quarter of 2014 (see Note
7) and is recorded in Other assets – net in the consolidated balance sheets. Because the acquisition happened
during the first quarter of 2014, there has been no annual review of goodwill as of May 31, 2014, with the
first annual review of goodwill planned in the fourth quarter of 2014, unless indicators for impairment exist
in earlier periods.
Hospital Revenues, net - We recognize revenues from the Hospital operation acquired in 2013 in the period
in which services are provided. Amounts we receive for treatment of patients covered by governmental
programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid, and other third-party payers such as HMOs, PPOs and other
private insurers, are generally less than our established billing rates. Revenues are recorded at estimated net
amounts due from patients, third-party payers and others for healthcare services provided. Accordingly,
revenues are reduced to net realizable value through an allowance for contractual discounts. For certain
payers, such as Medicare, Medicaid, as well as some managed care payers with which we have contractual
arrangements, the contractual allowances are calculated by computerized logging systems based on defined
payment terms. For other payers, the contractual allowances are determined based on historical data by
insurance plan. All contractual adjustments, regardless of type of payer or method of calculation, are
reviewed and compared to actual experience.
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